
1 

GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 21, 2023  
 (Please turn off, or silence, all cellphones upon entering the Council Chambers) 

I. WORK SESSION–5:00 P.M. – LARGE CONF. RM, CITY HALL ADDITION, 200 N. CENTER ST., ROOM 206 
        

1. ROLL CALL

2. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3. OLD BUSINESS
a. NC Freedom Fest Update (Doug McGrath)
b. Workers' Compensation Coverage Exemption Certification Form (City Manager)

4. NEW BUSINESS
c. NPO Funding Update FY22-23
d. Goldsboro Police Department Pay Discussion (Police Department)
e. Goldsboro Fire Department Pay Discussion (Fire Department)
f. Consolidating Certain City Departments Under a Development Services Model (Assistant City

Manager)

II. CALL TO ORDER – 7:00 P.M. – COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 214 N. CENTER STREET
Invocation (Pastor Glenn Phillips, First Baptist Church)
Pledge of Allegiance

III. ROLL CALL

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of August 7, 2023

V. PRESENTATIONS 
B. Resolution Commending and Expressing Appreciation to Taj Polack for Serving on the Goldsboro City 

Council for More Than Three Years  
C. International Overdose Awareness Day Proclamation 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS
D. SU-5-23 Cemetery – T-intersection of Herbert St. and S. John St. ext. (Planning) – Continued from 7/17/23
E. SU-13-23 Special Event Venue (POE/No ABC)– South of US 70W between Hargrove St. and Claridge

Nursery Rd. (Planning) 

VII. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS
F. CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program Guidelines & Application (Community Relations)
G. NC Freedom Fest – Temporary Street Closure (Police)
H. US Dept. of Justice: Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Formula Program:  Local

Solicitation (Police) 
I. Deed of Easement between the City of Goldsboro and BPR Goldsboro, LLC (Planning)
J. Sale of City Right-of-Way for NCDOT Project U-4753 (Assistant City Manager)
K. Resolution Approving the City Fiscal Policy Guidelines (City Manager)
L. Departmental Monthly Reports

IX. ITEMS REQUIRING INDIVIDUAL ACTION

X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

XI. CEREMONIAL DOCUMENTS

XII. MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS’ COMMENTS

XIII. CLOSED SESSION

XIV. ADJOURN

- Moved to Presentations

- Continued to 9/18/23

(Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones)

hjones
Cross-Out



bw.s.



Page 1 of 1    
 

 

Workers' Compensation Coverage  
Exemption Certification 
 

City of Goldsboro I Goldsboro, NC 27533 I 919-580-4362 
 
 

 

 

This form must be completed by contractors to claim Workers' Compensation exemption when they have less than three 
(3) workers and do not have coverage through an insurance company. Please email the completed form to: 
cityclerk@goldsboronc.gov. 

 
 

 

Contractor Information 

Business Name:   Contact Name: 
Email Address:  Phone #: 

Mailing address: 

City:                     State: Zip code: 
N.C.G.S. Chapter 87-14 & Chapter 97 Workers' Compensation Act 

 

The undersigned applicant certifies that (check the one that applies): 

� I am a Licensed General Contractor of the State of North Carolina. License #: ___________________ 

� I am an Unlicensed General Contractor of the State of North Carolina. 

 
By signing below, the undersigned applicant hereby certifies the following with respect to Workers' 
Compensation Insurance Coverage: 
 

• I hereby certify that I am EXEMPT from the requirements of G.S. Chapter 97, requiring 
workers' compensation insurance coverage for contractors that employ three or more 
employees. 
 

• If at any time I employ three or more employees, I will provide the City of Goldsboro with the 
required Certificate of Insurance for workers' Compensation insurance coverage. 

 

General Contractor Signature Block 

  Licensed or Unlicensed General Contractor Signature:  
  Date: _____/_____/______ 

 

City Manager Signature Block 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  City Manager Approval Signature: 
Date: _____/_____/______ 

Notary Public and Seal 

 
Sworn to and subscribed before this _____ day of ___________, 20____   
 
Notary Public Signature: 
 
My commission expires: 

 
Seal: 

 



NPO FY 22-23 Funding Update 

1. Boys & Girls Clubs   --------------------------------    $ 13,533

2. Communities Supporting Schools of WC   ----    $ 13,033

3. HGDC Community Crisis Center   ----------------   $ 7,086

4. Literacy Connections   ------------------------------   $ 9,601

5. Passionate Beginnings Resource Center   ----     $ 3,898

6. WAGES ----------------------------------------------    $ 10,148

7. WATCH ----------------------------------------------    $ 14,981

8. Wayne County Museum   -------------------------    $ 13,783

9. WISH ----------------------------------------------    $ 11,518

w.s. item c





























































Passionate 
Beginnings 
Resource Center 

Passion Smith, MSW, CD(DONA)

#5



Passionate Beginnings 
Resource Center provides 
direct maternal health 
services in order to help 
produce better outcomes 
for underserved and 
underrepresented 
populations in Wayne 
County. All services are 
provided free of charge.  



Services Offered:
● Doula Services

● Lactation Support 

● Childbirth Education

● Postpartum Support

● Infant And Family Necessities

● Formula Distribution



Statistics: 
In Wayne County, 

1. The infant mortality rate for White 
Americans is 5.3% and 15.3% for 
African Americans. 

2. 8% of White Americans that are born 
are of low birth rate, 15.6% African 
American, and 7.6% Hispanic. 

3. Wayne county ranks #32 in the state 
for teen pregnancy. 

4. Wayne county has a breastfeeding 
rate of 75.8%.

5. Rates of premature deaths are higher 
in Wayne County (9,600 years of life 
lost) compared to the state.



Breastfeeding Support:
Passionate Beginnings Resource Center has provided 10 
parents with breastfeeding support within the last year.

Assistance Provided For: 
● Latching difficulty
● Breastfeeding education
● Pumping schedules
● Donor breast milk donation



Childbirth Education:
Passionate Beginnings Resource Center was able to 
provide childbirth education to 40 families within the last 
year. 
Education Included:
● What to expect during labor
● Homebirth education
● Birth and hormones
● Infant feeding



Doula Support:
Passionate Beginnings Resource Center 
was able to provide 3 parents with doula 
services within the last year.

Services included:
● Assistance during labor
● Birth plan creation
● Advocacy



Postpartum Support: 
Passionate Beginnings Resource Center was able to 
provide postpartum support to 4 clients within the last 
year.

Services include: 
● Meal preparation
● Light cleaning
● Sibling care
● Infant care



Infant and Family 
Necessities:

Passionate Beginnings Resource Center 
has provided over 30 families with infant 
food, toys, breastfeeding supplies, 
formula, maternity clothes, diapers, 
pullups, and more!



Future Projects In 
Progress: 

● Community Baby Shower
● Doula Training



References
https://healthycommunitiesnc.org/profile/geo/wayne-
county#teen-birth

https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/units/ldas/cha2021/Way
ne2021-CHA.pdf

https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/data/vital/ims/2020/

https://healthycommunitiesnc.org/profile/geo/wayne-county#teen-birth
https://healthycommunitiesnc.org/profile/geo/wayne-county#teen-birth
https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/units/ldas/cha2021/Wayne2021-CHA.pdf
https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/units/ldas/cha2021/Wayne2021-CHA.pdf
https://schs.dph.ncdhhs.gov/data/vital/ims/2020/




















@@@@@@@@



GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Michael D. West, Chief of Police

August 21, 2023

w.s. item d



8/17/2023 2

VACANCIES



8/17/2023 3

VACANCIES
Type of Separation (Sworn) 2020 2021 2022 Total (last 3 years)

Retirement 4 1 3 8

Terminated 2 0 1 3

Other LE Agency 5 8 7 20

Other Career/Education 0 5 1 6

Other/Undisclosed 6 4 2 12

Total 17 18 14 49

2020 2021 2022 Total (last 3 years)

# Hired 7 5 11 23



8/17/2023 4

CRIME DATA
PART I CRIMES 2022 2023 Trend

Month (July) 168 213 +27%

YTD (July) 1122 1273 +13%

CLEARANCE RATES 2022 2023 Trend

Month (July) 10% 8% -2%

YTD (July) 10% 13% +3%

SHOTSPOTTER 2022 2023 Trend

Month (July) 37 112 +202%

YTD (July) 302 476 +57%



8/17/2023 5

SALARY COMPARISONS
ENTRY BASE Goldsboro WCSO Wilson Princeton Kinston Garner Clayton Smithfield Raleigh

Chapel 
Hill

2022 $38,505 $41,000 $41,064 $45,379 $40,278 $47,060 $45,404 $42,416 $42,300 $50,000

2023 $41,239 $50,000 $49,859 $45,379 $40,278 $54,708 $61,522 $48,789 $50,301 $50,000

Other Agency Incentives:
• Wilson offers higher incentives for probation, progression, 

sworn service, military service, education
• Princeton offers higher incentive for probation
• Kinston offers higher incentive for progression
• Raleigh offers higher incentives for experience and 

education
• Chapel Hill offers higher incentives for language, education, 

POPAT, Advanced LE certificate

Current GPD Incentives:
• CJ Standards Probation = 5%
• Sworn service/ military service = 1%/year
• Career Progression I, II, Senior = 5% (each level)
• Education = 2.5% to 5%
• Language = 5%
• FTO = 5%
• K9 Officer = 5%
• Traffic Officer = 5%



8/17/2023 6

PROPOSAL A

Position Current Pay Grade/Salary Proposed Pay Grade

61/41 Police Officer 73 $41,239.41 - $65,158.27 77 $50,126.76 - $79,200.28

23 Corporal 76 $47,739.77 - $75,428.84 79 $55,264.75 - $87,318.31

11 Sergeant 77 $50,126.76 - $79,200.28 81 $60,929.39 - $96,268.44

8 Captain 80 $58,027.99 - $91,684.23 83 $67,174.65 - $106,135.96

3 Major 85 $74,060.06 - $117,014.89 86 $77,763.06 - $122,865.64

1 Chief 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33

107 Total $5,613,904.31 
Budget Adopted 
$5,787,592.80

$6,619,274.02

(-831,681.22)



8/17/2023 7

PROPOSAL B

Position Current Pay Grade/Salary Proposed Pay Grade

61/41 Police Officer 73 $41,239.41 - $65,158.27 76,77,
78,79 $47,739.78 - $75,428.85

23 Corporal 76 $47,739.77 - $75,428.84 79 $55,264.75 - $87,318.30

11 Sergeant 77 $50,126.76 - $79,200.28 81 $60,929.39 - $96,268.45

8 Captain 80 $58,027.99 - $91,684.23 83 $67,174.65 - $106,135.97

3 Major 85 $74,060.06 - $117,014.89 86 $77,763.06 - $122,865.64

1 Chief 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33 89 $90,020.46 - $142,232.33

107 Total $5,613,904.31 
Budget Adopted 
$5,787,592.80

* no 
merit $6,104,577.80*

(-490,673.49)



8/17/2023 8

FUNDING
Lapse Salaries/Unused Funding

Delayed promotion (FY 25) of Major vacancy $83,448.75 

12 funded Officer and 1 Corporal vacancy for 6 months 
(Jan 1, 2024)

$242,251.77

6 funded Officer and 1 Corporal vacancy for 6 months 
(July 1, 2024)

$132,849.06

Total Lapse Salaries for 12 months (July 1, 2024) $458,549.58

Promotional Assessment for Major $25,000.00

Total Funding $483,549.58



8/17/2023 9

QUESTIONS

Thank you for your time.

Chief Michael D. West
mwest@goldsboronc.gov 

Office: 919-580-4231

mailto:mwest@goldsboronc.gov


FIRE DEPARTMENT SALARY PROPOSAL

Ron Stempien, Fire Chief

August 21, 2023

8/17/2023 1

w.s. item e



8/17/2023 2

Personnel 

 35 personnel have been 
hired since 2019.

 44 personnel have 
resigned/retired since 
2019.

 17 of the 35 personnel 
hired since 2019 have 
resigned.

7
8

6

14

11

6

11 11

5

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Hired Resignation/Retirement



8/17/2023 3

Current Staffing

GFD has 75 Line Personnel Positions
 

7 –  Vacant Firefighter Positions

3 – Frozen Firefighter Positions
65

3
7

Filled Frozen Firefighter Vacant Firefighter



8/17/2023 4

NFPA 1710 Requires a response of 17 personnel for structure fires in single family homes. 

Remaining GFD personnel to cover the rest of the city during fire. 

Current Response Situation



8/17/2023 5

NFPA 1710 Requires a response of 17 personnel for structure fires in single family homes. 

Remaining GFD personnel to cover the rest of the city during fire. 

Ideal Response Situation



8/17/2023 6

Call Volume

Call volume in July has increased by 53% 

January February March April May June July
Total Calls 277 222 229 262 263 277 389
Multi-truck  Fire Calls 81 62 75 89 86 98 101

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450



Importance 
of Quick 
Response 
Times

8/17/2023 7



Effects of Personnel Shortage

8/17/2023 8

• Decrease safety of responders and citizens
• Special teams hindered
• Patient care diminished
• Makes obtaining training requirements more difficult
• Low morale



Hiring Stats for Current Process

8/17/2023 9

9 2

73

Total Applicants: 84

Passed CPAT Passed CPAT (with cert) Dropped Process



Current Pay Scale in Eastern NC

8/17/2023 10

$38,153.00 
$40,000.00 

$41,910.00 $42,000.00 $42,380.00 $42,774.00 $43,500.00 
$45,000.00 

$49,289.00 $49,602.00 $50,814.40 
$52,457.00 

$55,000.00 

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00



Pay Grades
(Current and Proposed)

8/17/2023 11

60

65

70

75

80

85

90

70
71 71

74 74

78 78

81

85

88
89

73
74

75

77
78

79
80

82

85

88
89

Current Pay Grade Proposed Pay Grade



Pay Increases

8/17/2023 12

10% Raise

0% Raise

5% Raise

11+% Raise

• 54 Personnel will receive a 10% Raise
• This includes Firefighters, Engineers, and Captains.

• 7 Personnel will receive a 5% Raise
• This includes the 3 Battalion Chiefs, 3 Assistant Chiefs, 

and Deputy Chief.

• 5 Personnel will receive no raise
• This includes the Fire Chief, Executive Assistant, 

Administrative Assistant, and part-time personnel.

• 17 Personnel will receive over 10% to bring them up to the 
bottom of their new pay scale.

• This includes 15 firefighter positions and 2 Engineer 
positions.

• This brings the firefighter starting pay to a competitive 
level with surrounding departments.



Proposed Pay Scale
(Certified Firefighters)

8/17/2023 13

$40,000.00 
$41,910.00 $42,000.00 $42,380.00 $42,774.00 $43,301.00 $43,500.00 

$45,000.00 

$49,289.00 $49,602.00 $50,814.40 
$52,457.00 

$55,000.00 

$0.00

$10,000.00

$20,000.00

$30,000.00

$40,000.00

$50,000.00

$60,000.00



Cost and Funding

8/17/2023 14

Cost
Total: $405k

Funding Options
Make Effective January 2024 – requiring only half 

of the cost ($203k)

Hire only 2 certified FF before January 2024 
($95k)



fw.s.



1 of 13 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE GOLDSBORO CITY COUNCIL 
AUGUST 7, 2023 

WORK SESSION 

The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in a Work Session in the Large Conference Room, 
City Hall Addition, 200 North Center Street, at 5:00 p.m. on August 7, 2023.   

Call to Order.  Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. 

Roll Call.  
Present: Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 
Councilman Greg Batts 

Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 
Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  

 Adoption of the Agenda. Councilwoman Jones requested the addition of a discussion regarding 200 North Carolina 
Street. Mayor Ham stated the discussion will be added to the work session agenda under old business.  Upon motion of 
Councilman Broadaway, seconded by Councilwoman Jones, and unanimously carried, Council adopted the amended agenda. 

Old Business. 
200 N. Carolina Street Discussion. Councilwoman Jones stated this property is in her district and she understands this 

was joint property between the city and the county and was deemed surplus by the county. City Manager Salmon shared the 
property was not deemed surplus because we are looking at it for future development. Councilwoman Jones asked if the 
council has the opportunity to deem it surplus and shared concerns why Council wasn’t brought before council to discuss. 
The Downtown Development Department deemed the property as not surplus. Councilwoman Jones shared the county 
deemed the property surplus and agreed that Mr. Uzzell could purchase the property. Shared concerns why the Council 
wasn’t given an opportunity to discuss the property. Council discussed the issue with Mr. Salmon. Councilwoman Jones 
made a motion to make the property on 200 North Carolina Street surplus property and available for offer to purchase. The 
motion was seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Matthews. Council continued the discussion about the property. The property will 
go through the upset bid process. Mayor Ham, Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, Councilwoman Jones, Councilman Broadaway, 
and Councilman Batts voted for the motion. Councilman Gaylor voted against the motion. The motion passed 5:1.  

New Business. 
NCORR Affordable Housing. Matt Whittle, Habitat for Humanity Executive Director shared the following 

presentation.   

Item A



2 of 13 
 

 

 

 
 

Council discussed the request. Assistant City Manager Livingston shared if the grant is awarded, he would administer 
the grant. Council and City Manager Salmon discussed the infrastructure with Mr. Whittle.  Mr. Whittle shared Habitat will 
be responsible for contracting all the roadwork, and water/sewer work. Councilman Gaylor made a motion that the City of 
Goldsboro be the primary applicant for the grant for the construction of the McNair Heights Project. The motion was 
seconded by Councilman Broadway. Councilman Gaylor asked if this would be a fixed based design build contract. Mr. 
Whittle was not sure at this time. Councilman Gaylor shared he supported us going in a fixed price development contract 
format. After the further discussion, the motion passed unanimously.  

 
Insurance Waiver for Butts Mobile Home Movers to Relocate the City’s Modular Building. Rick Fletcher, 

Public Works Director presented the following item.  
 
The modular building located at Fire Station 4 is scheduled to be relocated to the Public Works complex and repurposed for 
IT office space and storage.  All efforts to find a single contractor capable of relocating and setting up the modular building, 
and who also meets all the City’s insurance requirements, have been exhausted.      

 
Butts Mobile Home Movers Inc. is the only local contractor that has shown any interest in, or who is capable of, completing 
the entire relocation and set-up project.  In fact, they accomplished the initial relocation and setup of the modular currently at 
Fire Station 4 and the Signal Shop modular in the Public Works compound in 2017.  Since 2017, the City has updated the 
General Liability (GL) and Workers Compensation (WC) insurance requirements for anyone working on City property.  Mr. 
Butts meets the auto insurance requirements, but not the GL or WC.  According to the City’s insurance carrier (AJG), auto 
liability is the largest exposure to risk.   

 
Mr. Butts accomplished two previous modular relocations for the City in 2017 and is capable of accomplishing the current 
relocation.  Hiring a general contractor who meets the GL and WC requirements to oversee the removal, transport and 
installation of the modular will more than likely double the cost to $50K or $60K. 

 
Staff recommended council waive the Workers Compensation and General Liability requirements for Butts Mobile Home 
Movers, so they can be awarded the contract to relocate the City’s modular unit.   
 

Councilman Batts made a motion to waive the Workers Compensation and General Liability requirements for Butts 
Mobile Home Movers to relocate the City’s modular building. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and 
unanimously carried.  

 
 
 

NCORR: Affordable Housing Development Fund
McNair Heights



3 of 13 
 

Public Safety Complex Repairs. Jamie Stanley, Deputy Public Works Director presented the following item. 
 
The original 50-year-old building and the subsequent four building additions have sinking foundations causing 

structural separation between the roof and walls which has allowed water infiltration throughout the facility. Many windows 
have gaps along the sill that allow visible light to show through due to the shifting of the foundation and walls. Excessive 
water during rain and moisture from humidity is causing HVAC problems. Some new HVAC equipment has been installed, 
but the excessive moisture overwhelms the system. Portions of the facility are currently closed due to mold and the inability 
to regulate the interior atmosphere. Some interior electrical outlets and internet connections have flowing water inside them. 
The interior floor slab is sinking in multiple locations causing significant plumbing issues. An initial cost estimate to repair 
the existing facility is $2 – 3M. A new 50,000 SF facility is estimated to cost $10 – 15M. 

 
Options to consider: 1) Repair the identified problems in the current facility; 2) Replace all but the newest building addition; 
3) Build an entirely new complex. To make repairs, the next step will be to send out a Request for Proposal (RFP) to firms 
for competitive bids to create the project information and all bid items that will be required for the total project. Then the 
project management firm will follow that process with a formal bid to general contractors to perform all work identified. 

 
Staff will produce an RFP for current building envelope and HVAC repairs to better inform Council of the expected costs. 

 

 

 
 

Mayor Ham discussed the issue and shared he has contacted Senator Tillis’ office to seek help in funding the project. 
Mr. Stanley discussed the conditions of the building and stated the helical piers will not fix any item; it will only prevent the 
building from further settling. Assistant City Manager Livingston discussed the options for the building. There were no 
further comments.    

 
Wastewater Reclamation Facility Expansion Engineering Design Services. Matt Livingston, Assistant City 

Manager presented the following item.  
 
Approximately one year ago the City of Goldsboro was under a NC Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) temporary 
sewer moratorium as the Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) exceeded 80% capacity by 1% (see attached NCDEQ 
memorandum). Much of the flow was due to water inflow and infiltration (I&I) into the sewer system during a very rain 
intensive year. The City worked with state officials to lift the moratorium by demonstrating the ongoing efforts to reduce I&I 
and received NCDEQ approval to permit projects up to 90% of the WRF capacity. Calendar Year 2023 WRF flows average 
61% (9mgd of 14.2mgd) capacity in part due to drier conditions. While the City currently has some available capacity to 
support growth, that amount is quickly being used up as new development gets approved and is dependent on weather 
conditions. The City is permitted to discharge up to 17.6mgd but that is not adequate to meet expected future wastewater 
treatment needs. 

 
In the FY23 budget, $632,806 was approved for WRF expansion engineering design services.  Staff seeks Council 
concurrence to design a plant that will increase our operational treatment capacity by at least 7mgd. 

 
It was recommended that on-call engineering services be used for Wastewater Treatment Plant engineering design services to 
expand the existing facility by at least 7mgd while concurrently seeking a wastewater flow permit increase.   
 
Council discussed the proposal. Council gave consensus for Assistant City Manager Livingston to move forward with the 
actions discussed.  

Public Safety Complex Update

8/4/2023 1

Key Facts

• The original building is 50 years old, along with the core plumbing and electrical.
• The founda�on is s�ll sinking.
• The founda�on failure is causing structural failure of the interior and exterior walls.
• The roof connec�ons to the suppor�ng walls have separated due to founda�on and

wall movement.
• The roof and many windows have numerous water infiltra�on loca�ons.
• The interior floor slab is sinking, causingsignificantplumbing and flooring issues.
• Some exis�ng duct work is posi�ve for mold.
• Some repairs will require asbestos abatement.



4 of 13 
 

Consent Agenda Review. Items G - I on the consent agenda were reviewed. Further discussion included the 
following: 

 
Item H. Authorization of sale of substandard lots to adjacent property owner under Session Law 2004-94 

(Senate Bill 1370) for 100 Whitfield Drive and S. Alabama Street (John H. Oliver, Jr.) Catherine Gwynn, Finance 
Director presented the item.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Mathews made a motion to accept the offer. The motion was seconded by Councilman Batts and 

unanimously carried. 
 
Closed Session. 
Upon motion of Mayor Pro Tem Matthews, seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried, Council went 

into Closed Session for litigation purposes. 
 
After the Closed Session was held, Council came out of Closed Session and back into Open Session. 
 
Mayor Ham recessed the meeting at 6:29 p.m. 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
The City Council of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, met in Regular Session in Council Chambers, City Hall, 

214 North Center Street, at 7:00 p.m. on August 7, 2023. 
 
Mayor Ham called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Pastor Ronnie E. Spruill with Have Faith Ministries provided the invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 

Roll Call.   
Present:  Mayor David Ham, Presiding 

Mayor Pro Tem Brandi Matthews 
Councilwoman Hiawatha Jones 
Councilman Bill Broadaway 
Councilman Charles Gaylor, IV 

   Councilman Greg Batts 
 
Also Present: Tim Salmon, City Manager 

Matt Livingston, Assistant City Manager 
Ron Lawrence, City Attorney  
Laura Getz, City Clerk  
 

Approval of Minutes.  Councilman Broadaway made a motion to approve the Minutes of the Work Session and 
Regular Meeting of July 17, 2023 and the Revised Minutes of the Work Session and Regular Meeting of May 15, 2023.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.   

 
Presentations. 
Employee/Supervisor of Year Recognition. City Manager Salmon presented the following awards:  

 
 The Employee of the Year Award: Luke Miller. Officer Luke Miller put his training to use on June 6, 2023. He was 
flagged down by a mother whose 13-year-old daughter was having an anaphylactic reaction due to food allergies. The 13-
year-old was not breathing on her own, giving the universal sign for choking or not being able to breathe by putting her hands 
around her neck. The mother had an EpiPen but did not know how to utilize it. Officer Miller took the EpiPen, correctly 
utilized it, providing the child with some relief to her allergic reaction.  
 
Officer Miller called for EMS and kept an eye on the daughter. He also took the time to educate the mother on how to 
properly utilize the remaining EpiPen, in the event it would be needed in the future. EMS took several minutes to arrive on 
scene, and had Officer Miller not properly utilized the EpiPen, the outcome for the 13-year-old could have been worse. 
 
Officer Miller’s work ethic and accomplishments reflect well on himself and the City of Goldsboro. 
 
 The Supervisor of the Year Award: Joshua Shockley. As the Event Center Manager, Josh Shockley has exhibited 
professionalism, integrity, and customer-focus as we continue to work through and out of the pandemic. He continues to go 
above and beyond to serve the citizens of Goldsboro and many other guests that visit the Goldsboro Golf Course and Event 
Center. 
 
Josh continues daily, weekly, and monthly to put in place protocols for the Event Center to run as smoothly as possible. He and 
his staff work together to take care of their patrons daily. The citizens and guests of Goldsboro are continuously relaying 



5 of 13 
 

compliments regarding the service and professionalism they receive during their functions at the Event Center. The number of 
referrals and compliments continue to be a great asset to the success of the Event Center. 
 
Josh has only been the Event Center Manager for a year, yet has accomplished a 67% increase in events over any year that 
the City of Goldsboro has owned the Event Center. For the month of January 2023, Josh brought in revenue in excess of 
$21,000 for the month; this is 72.5% more than any other month in the history of the City owning and operating the Event 
Center. 
 
Josh's work ethic, professionalism, integrity, and customer-focus reflect well on himself and the City of Goldsboro.    
 

Susan Thornton Recognition. Recognize Susan Thornton, Senior Human Resources Consultant, for the Myers 
Johnson New Member Award presented at the Public Sector Human Resource Association’s annual meeting on March 16, 
2023.  
 
Since 1906, the Public Sector Human Resource Association has been a resource for comprehensive and timely HR industry 
news, jobs, policies, resources, education, and professional development opportunities. 
 
The PSHRA has four distinguished awards that are given at their annual conference, among them is the Myers Johnson New 
Member Award.  “The purpose of this award is to give appreciation and recognition to an individual for their meritorious 
contributions and energy as a new member of PSHRA.  It is presented annually at the PSHRA Annual Conference. The 
recipient has graciously volunteered for a number of projects, is always eager to work for the good of the organization, 
willingly takes on tasks that others would prefer not to volunteer for and is generally able to work well under pressure.” 
  
The City of Goldsboro was honored when Susan Thornton, Senior Human Resources Consultant. was the recipient of Myers 
Johnson New Member Award at the Marth 16th awards banquet. Ms. Thornton joined PSHRA in 2019 and was recognized 
for her many accomplishments with the chapter to include serving on the Achievement & Recognition, Social, Technology, 
and Conference Planning Committees.  It is a distinction for the City to know that we have the best of the best in Human 
Resources professionals as judged by her peers.  Ms. Thornton has been an invaluable asset to the City as we further our 
efforts to become a role model in the state of North Carolina for good governance. 
 
Bernadette Dove, Human Resources Director presented a plaque to Ms. Thornton.  
 

Justin Cates Recognition. Mayor Ham presented the following letter to Justin Cates and congratulated him on his 
success.  

 
   
Public Hearings.  
Z-10-23 Meares Bluff Village (Residential 20 A to Residential 6 CZ) – North of US 70 on the east side of N NC 

111 (Meares Bluff Subdivision). Rezoning Request Withdrawn. The item was presented by Kenny Talton, Planning 
Director.  

 
ADDRESS: Pickens Dr. & N NC 111 
PARCEL #: 3611048404 & 3601933033 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CE2, LLC 

 
The applicant is requesting a conditional rezoning from the Residential 20 Agriculture Zoning District to the Residential 6 
(R-6) Conditional Zoning District. The purpose of the Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District is to accommodate 
both single and multi-family residential uses and to prohibit all activities of a commercial nature.  
 

Access: Pickens Dr. 
Area: 22.4 acres 
Single-Family lots: 79 (3 phase construction) 



6 of 13 
 

 Phase A – 35 
 Phase B – 21 
 Phase C - 23 
 

North: Residential 20 Agriculture 
             South: Residential 20 Agriculture 

East: Residential 20 Agriculture 
West: Residential 16 & Residential 20 Agriculture 

 
The properties are currently vacant. 
 
The City’s Land Use Plan locates these parcels within the Low-Density Residential designation. 

 
This designation is intended to locate in areas where development pressures are the least.  
 
The Residential 6 (R-6) Conditional Zoning District is not identified as a corresponding district for the Low-Density 
Residential land use designation. The application states that in 2008, the developer purchased sewer capacity on the Stoney 
Creek Church force main in anticipation for future development.  
 
This is a conditional rezoning proposal to establish a single-family residential planned unit development consisting of 79 
single-family lots, this development is proposed to be built out in three separate phases. The adjacent uses are the Meares 
Bluff Subdivision and the Whispering Woods Subdivision. The parcels would have access off Pickens Dr. which is off of N 
NC 111. The development proposes to incorporate 25% open space. 
 
Staff has distributed this proposed conditional rezoning to several different departments as well as Seymour Johnson Air 
Force Base and NCDOT. There are no comments at this time, based off the concept design. If approved, this will require Site 
Plan submittal and will undergo TRC Review.  
 
Staff is recommending approval of the conditional rezoning request based on the fact that this would aid in satisfying the 
growing demand for housing in the City of Goldsboro and would not be out of character with the surrounding area which is 
also residential in nature. The availability of water and sewer does support a higher density development which is allowed in 
the Residential 6 district.   
    
The City of Goldsboro Planning Commission met on June 26, 2023, to review and make a recommendation regarding the 
rezoning request. Planning Commission voted 6 in favor 0 against. 
    
At the July 17, 2023 Council meeting, the Mayor closed the public hearing and Council continued the vote until August 7, 
2023 Council meeting. 
 
On August 3, 2023, the applicant submitted a request for withdrawal of the rezoning application (Z-10-23).  
 
Council shall vote to approve or deny the withdrawal request.  If  approved, no further action is required.  If the withdrawal 
request is denied, Council shall vote to adopt the recommendation for approval and consistency statement that the Planning 
Commission has provided and vote to adopt the Approval Ordinance with the inclusion of the consistency statement, or 
council shall vote to deny and adopt the Ordinance to Deny with the inclusion of a statement that deems this rezoning request 
to be inconsistent. Council may also continue the public hearing to a date certain if they determine further discussion is 
needed. 
 

Councilman Broadway made a motion to approve the withdrawal request. The motion was seconded by 
Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried.  
 

Public Hearing to Consider an Economic Development Agreement with ALTA Foods LLC and Wayne County. 
Public Hearing Held and Resolution Adopted. The item was presented by Tim Salmon, City Manager.  
 
ALTA Foods LLC desires to install certain machinery and equipment and expand its existing facility located in Goldsboro. 
This represents a total non-depreciated investment of at least $2,000,000 in personal and real property, and is proposed to 
create at least seventeen (17) new jobs at this facility on or before December 31, 2025, with incremental achievement goals 
starting December 31, 2023.  
 
The Goldsboro City Council believes the location of new industries and the expansion of existing industries is vital to the 
economic health of Goldsboro and to the welfare of its citizens.  The City Council wishes to encourage such development by 
means of offering incentives to recruit new industries and to aid in the expansion of existing industries.  Such incentives are 
predicated on the notion of expanding Goldsboro’s tax base and providing additional jobs for Goldsboro citizens that pay 
wages higher than the current prevailing average hourly wage in the particular industry.  
 
Pursuant to NC General Statue 158-7.1, a public hearing is being held on a proposal to provide economic incentives to ALTA 
Foods, LLC, totaling $30,000 ($14,700 by the City and $15,300 by the County) over a 3-year period based on an incentive 
agreement with a $2,000,000 personal and real property investment and the creation of at least 17 jobs.  



7 of 13 
 

Following the public hearing and depending on comments received, staff recommended Council consider adopting a 
Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the attached economic development agreement with ALTA 
Foods, LLC.    
 
Mayor Ham opened the public hearing. No one spoke and the public hearing was closed. 
 
Councilman Batts made a motion to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the economic 
development agreement with ALTA Foods, LLC. The motion was seconded by Councilman Gaylor and unanimously carried. 
Council adopted the following entitled Resolution.  
 
RESOLUTION 2023-52 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO EXECUTE AN ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH ALTA FOODS, LLC.” 
 

Public Comment Period.  Mayor Ham opened the public comment period, no one spoke and the public comment 
period was closed.   

Consent Agenda – Approved as Recommended. City Manager Salmon presented the Consent Agenda.  All items 
were considered to be routine and could be enacted simultaneously with one motion and a roll call vote.  If a Councilmember 
so requested, any item(s) could be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and considered separately. In that event, 
the remaining item(s) on the Consent Agenda would be acted on with one motion and roll call vote. Councilman Gaylor 
moved the items on the Consent Agenda, Items G-I be approved as recommended by the City Manager and staff.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilman Batts and a roll call vote resulted in all members voting in favor of the motion. 

 
The items on the Consent Agenda were as follows:  
 

Amending a Grant Project Fund Ordinance – 2010 Sewer Bonds (S1104). Ordinance Adopted. The item was 
presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.  

 
Council adopted a grant project budget ordinance for the 2010 Sewer Bonds at the May 17, 2010 council meeting in the 
amount of $8,605,000 for various sewer system improvements.  The fund has been amended several times over the years to 
appropriate investment income on the unspent proceeds.   

  
In FY21, the City had to repair the Seymour Johnson Air Force Base sewer outfall and in order to utilize remaining 2010 
bond proceeds the project was accounted for in Fund S1104.  The original bond proceeds were recognized in the Utility 
Fund, so a transfer of funds was budgeted in FY21 in the Utility Fund and transferred to the 2010 Sewer Bonds project fund 
(S1104).  This amendment recognizes the appropriation of revenues and expenses in the project fund.  This amendment will 
also close this project fund. 

  
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Grant Project Ordinance amendment for the 2010 Sewer 
Bonds Capital Project Fund (S1104). Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Batts (6 Ayes) 

  
ORDINANCE 2023-47 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2010A SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS CAPITAL 
PROJECT FUND” 
 

Authorization of sale of substandard lots to adjacent property owner under Session Law 2004-94 (Senate Bill 
1370) for 100 Whitfield Drive and S. Alabama Street (John H. Oliver, Jr.) Resolution Adopted. The item was presented 
by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   

 
Staff has received an offer to purchase on city-owned property deemed substandard lots. Council must either accept or reject 
the offer, and if accepted authorize City officials to execute instruments necessary to transfer ownership. (Session Law 2004-
94 Senate Bill 1370) 
 
The following offer has been received: 
  

 100 Whitfield Drive 
  Offeror:  John H. Oliver, Jr. 

Offer:  $1.00 
Bid Deposit: $1.00 
Parcel #:  46657    Pin #: 2599557808 
Tax Value: $3,110.00  Zoning: R-6 

 
 S. Alabama Avenue 
  Offeror: John H. Oliver, Jr. 

Offer:  $1.00 
Bid Deposit: $1.00 
Parcel #:  46648    Pin #: 2599556817 
Tax Value: $350.00  Zoning: R-6 



8 of 13 
 

These are both substandard lots as determined by the Planning department, therefore the minimum offer is $1.00 per lot.  If 
the offers are accepted by Council, the Planning Department will notify the adjacent property owner(s) to determine if there 
is an interest in the lot. If there is, procedures of SL 2004-94 will be followed.  If not, City staff will execute documents 
necessary to transfer title to Mr. Oliver.   The earnest money deposit of $1.00 per lot has been received in the form of a 
money order. 
 
It was recommended that the City Council accept or reject offer on 100 Whitfield Drive and S. Alabama Street and if 
accepted, adopt the following entitled resolution. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-53 “RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SALE OF SURPLUS SUBSTANDARD REAL PROPERTY 
UNDER SESSION LAW 2004-94 SENATE BILL 1370” 
 

Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24. Ordinance Adopted.  The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, 
Finance Director.   

 
Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023.  
  

Public Works – Building & Grounds 
The Public Works Building and Grounds division has been asked to handle the mowing of the enhancement areas 

previously managed by Planning.  The original funding was moved from Planning to Parks and Recreation with the creation 
of the FY24 budget.  Upon further analysis of the duties required, Ms. Felicia Brown, Parks and Recreation director 
determined that her department could not manage the enhancement areas outside of the Welcome Signs so the task was 
assigned to Public Works.  In order to accomplish the additional work responsibilities, Mr. Rick Fletcher, Public Works 
Director requested an additional $16,000 in part-time temporary labor for Buildings and Grounds.  The additional 
appropriation will be funded with a reduction of part-time temporary labor in the Parks and Recreation department. 
 

Solid Waste 
At the June 20, 2023 council meeting, Mr. Rick Fletcher, Public Works Director, requested an appropriation of 

$231,000 for the purchase of a new trash compactor for the transfer station to replace the existing compactor that is 
approximately 40 years old.  Mr. Fletcher has received an estimate for the replacement of the compactor at approximately 
$349,000.  As discussed at the June 20th meeting, the remaining balance of $119,000 to purchase the compactor must be 
appropriated in the FY24 budget.  This will be funded with an appropriation of fund balance. 
 

Transfers – General Fund 
At the June 20, 2023 council meeting, an amendment to the Community Relations Special Revenue Fund (G1108) 

was presented to address some minor corrections needed to the fund.  There was an allocation error made in June, 2020 when 
creating the fund and it was shorted $1,720.60.  I was not able to include that in the final budget amendment for FY23.  I 
have included the transfer appropriation in the current budget, and it will be funded with an appropriation of investment 
income. 
 

Agency Support 
At the July 17, 2023 council meeting, Ms. Sherry Archibald, Executive Director of United Way of Wayne County, 

Inc., presented the FY24 non-profit funding recipients.  The list was approved by Council as presented. 
Agency Approved Amount 
4Day Movement $9,000.00 
WAGES $11,000.00 
Boys & Girls Club $9,000.00 
Communities in Schools $13,500.00 
Literacy Connections $5,000.00 
Arts Council $6,000.00 
Wayne County Museum $5,000.00 
WISH $11,500.00 
WATCH $15,000.00 
Total $90,000.00 

 
Stormwater Fund 

 In preparing the budget estimates for the debt service, I inadvertently made an error in coding a section of the new 
debt service to the General Fund when it should have been the Stormwater Fund.  The debt service in Stormwater is short by 
$78,391.00 and needs to be appropriated.  This will be funded with a reduction of contingency. 
 
 Purchase Order Rollover  
Included in the attached ordinance amending the annual operating budget for fiscal year 2024 are the appropriations 
necessary to re-establish encumbrances for the individual outstanding purchase orders as of June 30, 2023 that will be 
honored in the new fiscal year (FY24).  Also provided is a purchase order rollover listing by fund and includes a brief 
description of the items/services.  Departments must submit rollover requests in mid-July after submitting final invoices for 
June 30 to allow Finance a chance to clear out prior year bill payments.  It was requested that rollover requests should be 
more than $5,000.  An analysis of fund balance appropriated is also attached. 
 



9 of 13 
 

Items/services on the list represent construction contracts or service contracts that require significant time to completion or 
implementation which extends beyond the boundaries of the annual operating budget year from July 1 through June 30.  
 
Purchase orders for project funds are presented for informational purposes only and are not included in the attached 
ordinance as they are not annual operating type funds. 
 
The Local Government Commission of the State Treasurer’s Office recommends following the method of Reserve for 
Encumbrances that the City uses above.  The other acceptable method offered requires the City to hold open the prior fiscal 
year to account for encumbrances.  Although it is an acceptable method, the LGC does not recommend the use of this 
method. 
 

Analysis of Appropriated Fund Balance (Operating Funds Only) 
General Fund 

 
Stormwater Fund 

 
Utility Fund 

 
Downtown MSD Fund 

 

General Fund 2,063,324.43$    
Stormwater Fund 136,455.00         
Utility Fund 2,911,751.35      
Downtown MSD Fund 9,531.51            
Total Operating Funds 5,121,062.29$ 

Smeal Aerial Fire Truck 1,117,653.00$    
Police Evidence & Fire Station Renovation 47,303.85          
TIGER Streetscape 11,072.72          
VUR MRF Feasibility Grant 67,974.00          
Stormwater Drainage Projects 421,318.51         

Total Project Funds 1,665,322.08$ 

Total All Fund Types 6,786,384.37$ 

Analysis of Purchase Order Rollovers by Fund (FY23 to FY24)

 
 

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget 1,500,000.00$  

Current Year Appropriations 1,500,000.00$  

8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 2,063,324.43$  
8/7/2023 Balance of trash compactor for Solid Waste 119,000.00      

Proposed 2,182,324.43$  

Current Year with Proposed 3,682,324.43$  

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget -$               

Current Year Appropriations -$               

8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 136,455.00$    
Proposed 136,455.00$    

Current Year with Proposed 136,455.00$    

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget -$               

Current Year Appropriations -$               

8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 2,911,751.35$  
Proposed 2,911,751.35$  

Current Year with Proposed 2,911,751.35$  

Date Description Adopted
6/20/2023 Ord 2023-43 FY23-24 Adopted Budget -$               

Current Year Appropriations -$               

8/7/2023 FY22-23 Purchase Order Rollovers 9,531.51$        
Proposed 9,531.51$        

Current Year with Proposed 9,531.51$        



10 of 13 
 

It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY23-24 Operating Budget for the 
General Fund, Stormwater Fund, Utility Fund and Downtown MSD Fund. Consent Agenda Approval. Gaylor/Batts (6 Ayes) 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-48 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR” 

 
Items Requiring Individual Action  
Operating Budget Amendment FY23-24 – Wayne County Chamber of Commerce Allocation. Ordinance 

Adopted.  The item was presented by Catherine Gwynn, Finance Director.   
 
Council adopted the FY23-24 annual operating budget on June 20, 2023.  

  
Agency Support 
The adopted FY2023-24 budget included an allocation of $20,00.00 for Agency Support-Annual Allocation.   
 

Due to the impact of S.B. 473 (Session Law 2021-191), this budget amendment is presented to allocate the $20,000.00 to 
Agency Support – Wayne County Chamber of Commerce.  The Mayor should be excused from voting since he is an ex-
officio member of this board. 

 
It was recommended Council adopt the following entitled ordinance to amend the FY23-24 Operating Budget for the General 
Fund to allocate an appropriation to the Wayne County Chamber of Commerce. 

 
The Mayor requested to excuse himself from voting. Councilman Gaylor moved to allow the Mayor to be excused from this 
discussion due to conflict. The motion was seconded by Councilman Broadaway and unanimously carried. Mayor Ham left 
the meeting at 7:31 p.m.  

 
Councilman Gaylor made a motion to amend the FY23-24 Operating Budget as presented. The motion was seconded 

by Councilwoman Jones and unanimously carried. Council adopted the following entitled Ordinance.  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-49 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
GOLDSBORO FOR THE 2023-24 FISCAL YEAR” 

 
The Mayor returned to the meeting at 7:32 p.m. 
 
Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 115: Alcoholic Beverage Permits, implementing a Social 

District in the City of Goldsboro. Ordinance Adopted. The item was presented by Gregory Mills, Downtown Development.   
 

City Council was presented an update on Social District research and recommendation on June 20, 2023. The City of 
Goldsboro Downtown Development Office, in collaboration with several city departments, proposes Social District 
implementation based on the improved socio-economic impact for the city. On July 17, 2023, City of Goldsboro Downtown 
Development Office recommended adoption of Ordinance amending Chapter 115 to City Council.  This recommendation 
was postponed. 

 
In June 2022, House Bill 211 (HB 211), Social District/Common Area Clarifications, passed both the House and Senate with 
bi-partisan support and was subsequently signed into law by the Governor on July 7, 2022. Included was a provision allowing 
local governments to create social districts in North Carolina. Since that time 40+ municipalities have successfully 
implemented their Social Districts across NC. ABC Permitees and Downtown Merchants in Goldsboro overwhelmingly 
approve a Social District downtown. 

 
Concerns were raised on June 20, 2023, about pedestrian safety crossing Ash Street to John Street from the Firehouse 
business. The City Planning Department has contacted NCDOT to obtain information for installing a pedestrian crossing 
signal. An amended boundary option to exclude City Hall is also included for consideration. 

 
It was recommended that Council adopt the following entitled Ordinance amending Chapter 115: Alcoholic Beverage 
Permits in the City of Goldsboro’s Code of Ordinance creating a Downtown Social District in the City’s downtown area. 

  

Goldsboro Social District Refresh

Greg Mills, Business & Property Development

August 7, 2023

• A social district is a defined area in which a person
may consume alcoholic beverages from an official
container sold by an approved ABC permi�ee located
within defined social district boundaries and defined
days and hours of opera�on

Wha t is a  So cia l District?



11 of 13 
 

  

  

   

   

  
 
Council discussed the presentation regarding Social Districts. Mr. Mills, Council, City Attorney Lawrence and City 

Manager Salmon discussed the effective date of the social districts. Councilman Batts made a motion to adopt the Ordinance 
amending Chapter 115, which will take effect 60 days from the day of approval. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Gaylor. City Manager Salmon clarified that City Hall would not be included in the Social District. Council unanimously 
approved the following entitled Ordinance.  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2023-50 “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 115: ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE PERMITS, OF 
THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO’S CODE OF ORDINANCES, AND CREATING THE DOWNTOWN GOLDSBORO SOCIAL 
DISTRICT” 

 
 

The re  a re  no w  o ve r 40 So cia l Districts in  NC
Albemarle - Asheboro - Cary (approved) - Charlo�e – Southend & Plaza
Midwood - Cornelius – expanded - Davidson - Durham - Elkin
(approved) - Elon- Faye�eville- Franklinton - Garner- Gastonia-
Greensboro x2- Greenville- Hickory- High Point- Huntersville-
Kannapolis - Lake Norman- Laurinburg - Lenoir- Madison - Manteo-
Marion (approved) - Monroe - Newton- Norwood - Oxford- Pilot
Mountain- Raleigh – expanded- Rutherfordton (approved) - Salisbury-
Selma- Statesville- Sylva- Tarboro - Washington - Wendell- Whiteville-
Wilson- Youngsville

Why So cia l Districts

• The fastest growing downtown development program in the State
• Proven Economic driver for increased revenue for downtown businesses
• A�racts new events and new visitors
• A�racts more businesses to downtown
• Incen�vizes retail establishments to stay open later
• Increases pedestrian ac�vity and provides a variety of experiences
• Low implementa�on cost, low maintenance cost

Who  Ca n Se ll Alco ho l in  a  So cia l District?
Only ABC permitees holding approvedon-premisesABC permitsmay sell alcohol to be consumed in
a social district.

Special One-�me ABC permits used for non-profit organiza�on events at the HUB or Freedom Field
are not legally approved to sell alcohol into the Social District.

This results in 3 op�ons for events held inside the Social District such as the HUB or Freedom Field.

1. An event at that chooses to sell alcohol with a Special One-�me ABC permit must be closed to the Social District.
Therefore, events serving alcohol will operate as they have in the past – no alcohol comes in and no alcohol goes out of
the defined event space .

2. An event that chooses NOT to sell alcohol at their event may choose to be open to the Social District – people with
alcohol legally obtained from and ac�ng in accordance with the Social District may a�end

3. An event that chooses NOT to sell alcohol at their event may choose to be closed to the Social District , meaning no
alcohol is allowed inside their event space

Revised
So cia l District Bo und a ry

a nd  Ho urs
Proposed Area to include current ABC

Permi�ees

Center St from Ash to Spruce

James to John on:
Mulberry, Walnut, Chestnut, Spruce

Space around City Hall buildings will be
excluded

10am–10pm
Monday through Sunday

Only on-premise ABC permi�ees can sell alcohol to
the Social District

Mostly restaurants open at 10 am

Sunday 10am to accommodate Brunch Bill
Goldsboro City Council approved the sale of alcohol at

10 am on Sunday in 2017

Mo st Co mmo n Questio n
If my business is in the social district, but I do not want customers coming into the
business with alcoholic beverages, do I have to allow it?

No - any business located in, or con�guous to, the designated social district has the
op�on to par�cipate, or not, in allowing customers with beverages to enter their
premises- These window/door decals display preferences - Informa�on also posted on
the city Social District website

Ad d itio na l Rule s fo r ABC Pe rmittee s to  Se ll Alco ho l
in  the  So cia l District
• Alcoholic beverages that are being sold to be consumed in a social district

can only be sold in an official container that meets all the following
requirements:
 The container clearly displays the ABC permi�ee from which the alcoholic

beverage was purchased

 The container clearly displays a logo or some other mark that is unique to the
social district in which it will be consumed

 The container clearly displays the date the beverage was purchased

 The container displays, in no less than 12 -point font, the statement, “Drink
Responsibly – Be 21”

 The container is not made of glass

 The container cannot hold more than sixteen fluid ounces

Wha t Req uirements Do  Custo mers Ha ve  to
Fo llo w  Within a  So cia l District?

 Any alcoholic beverages consumed in the social district outside of the approved ABC
permi�ed businessmust be consumed from an official container

 A person can only possess and consume alcoholic beverages purchased from an approved
ABC permi�ee located inthe social district- A person cannot bring their own personal
alcohol into the social district for consump�on

 A person cannot pour their alcoholic beverage into any personal type of container

City p e rfo rmed  re sea rch & d ue  d ilig ence

 Key city departments held several mee�ngs with various stakeholders to discuss pros and cons of
implemen�ng Social Districts including City management, Planning, Downtown Development and
Goldsboro Police Department (GPD)-

 GPD reached out to several neighboring communi�es who already implemented Social Districts and
found no major concerns resul�ng from implementa�on

 The City A�orney has reviewed the proposed ordinance and found no issues

 The majority of ABC permi�ed businesses support implemen�ng a Social District

City p e rfo rmed  re sea rch & d ue  d ilig ence
• The majority (95%) of downtown merchants inside the Social District support

implemen�ng a Social District

Any que stions??



12 of 13 
 

 
City Manager’s Report.  
City Manager Tim Salmon thanked the Goldsboro Police Department, the Wayne County Sheriff's Office, and 

everybody else that participated in the National Night Out on August 1st. He shared the Goldsboro Golf Course hosted the 
Wayne County Amateur Tournament; there were 142 golfers and thanked Obie and everybody that made that happen.  North 
Carolina Freedom Fest will be held September 8th and 9th, in downtown Goldsboro.  

 
Mayor and Councilmembers’ Comments. 

Mayor Ham shared the following comments: I'd like to read something in memory of Mr. Thomas Rice. On July 18th of this 
year someone well known in our community, Mr. Thomas Rice, unexpectedly passed away. Many of us knew Mr. Rice as a 
man who was passionate about helping those unhoused men and women in our community. Thomas was optimistic and 
confident that his dream of providing a program of temporary housing, medical and addiction treatment, would eventually 
happen. Those of us who knew him respected his tireless efforts and persistence to accomplish his goal. The restoration of 
Hope Village was his dream. Although not completed, Thomas did see the beginning of his dream before his passing. He had 
planned a Community Day Event this past Saturday to provide medical evaluation and counseling to those in need and bring 
the issue of their plight to the public’s attention. Although Thomas was not there, two of his ardent supporters, Mr. David 
Simmons and Archbishop Slater, made sure that it happened. The location was a nearby homeless encampment. It was well 
attended, with service providers from Kinston, Lenoir County, Campbell University, and many local organizations. As I 
walked around and spoke to the many service providers and visitors, it was very evident that the spirit of Thomas was 
present. Mrs. Rice was present, and expressed her delight that the event was carried on in his memory. I'm sure Thomas was 
looking down on the assembled group with a big smile. 

 
Councilman Batts had no comment.  

 
Councilman Gaylor shared the following comments:  The healthcare fair this past Saturday; they did a phenomenal job. Ms. 
Donna Rice, Archbishop Slater, his business partner David Simmons, and all the volunteers that came together to pull that off 
in his honor and in his memory.  A huge thank you to them for the work that they put in trying to figure out all the little notes 
that Thomas kept in his head and didn't keep in a little notepad for people to be able to see who was supposed to pick up porta 
potties; great job guys, I appreciate it. National Night Out, echoing the City Manager’s comments, huge success. Anytime 
you walk down the street, and you see that many people in Herman Park, and it's that positive environment; Target’s giving 
away stuff, you've got kids playing, the Kiwanis train is running. Just a fantastic use of the park and I could not be more 
grateful to our law enforcement for being willing to put in that time and that energy, and I realize a lot of those folks were 
there off hours and I realize how exhausting it was; it was hot, but thank you so much for being there. Next, we approved an 
economic development package tonight, a little incentive package for something, and we see those come before council quite 
often, but I want to draw a little bit of significance to this one. It wasn't the biggest one you are ever going to see approved, 
but to me it was pretty meaningful because it was a local family; a local multigenerational entrepreneurial family. They live 
here in Goldsboro, they pay taxes here in Goldsboro, their business is located here in Goldsboro, other members of their 
executive team live here in Goldsboro. This isn't going out and trying to recruit and steal from somebody else; this is growing 
our own. I always look forward to being able to celebrate and to grow those folks that have not just invested some money 
here, but also put their own personal flag and their personal brand in the ground here. And lastly to Mr. Justin Cates, I don't 
think folks realize how special you are when you actually get to the point of being paid to play a sport. Being in that 1% or a 
10th of 1% that ever actually get to cash a check. Just thinking about guys that I that I knew and went to high school with; 
Montrell Coley got drafted by the Saints, Jimmy Graham who got drafted originally by the Saints, Manny who originally got 
drafted by the 49ers, you've got Justin, he's played in Canada. There's a lot of athletic talent here in Goldsboro and that's 
pretty neat that we got to add to that list of professional athletes tonight, so congratulations to him and his family for all the 
work and hopefully it’s paying off.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Matthews shared the following comments: I want to publicly say happy personal holiday to our Clerk, who 
works really, really hard to personally keep me straight and the rest of us straight. I also wanted to invite District 4 to come 
swim with me tomorrow at Mina Weil Pool; I’ll be there from 12:30 to 3:00. Adults, you’ll have to pay your way, but the 
kids get to swim on me tomorrow; look forward to celebrating those kids who finished summer school, and then as they 
prepare to start the new school year. Be safe tonight, thank you. 

 
Councilman Broadaway shared the following comments: I'd like to also say Happy Birthday to our City Clerk, and also 
congratulations to our employee and supervisor of the year; they’re emblematic of the quality of people we have working 
here in Goldsboro; the effort they put out. Congratulations. 

 
Councilwoman Jones shared the following comments:  Happy Birthday Laura. May you have many, many more. I also would 
say blessings to those students that started school back today; you're very, very important to this community. You're going to 
be our young citizens and our future, and I'm praying that your educational experience will cause you to want to go on to a 
higher journey; and blessings to you. I also want to say to the community, please continue to follow safety procedures. We 
are, all of us, I think all of our districts are working on community crime watching and trying to make sure and trying to stay 
safe and trying to help our Police Department. Also, I've had the opportunity along with many of us here on this dais to attend 
the Purple Heart ceremony; it was a really beautiful event. This time it was bittersweet because my relative is no longer here 
with us, but I was still there. The speaker challenged me to be all the things that he went through, and just how dynamic he is 
challenged me to do and be even more. 

 



C " -

d

v

o

b

a 

NCd
tp; 

0

vUi

W

w

c -;

3N
cd

rn

to

o

y

b

O

o

U

3

0 , 

U

cb

4-
4

bA

N >, 

cd

0

co

C

3

Z

o

9  

0

ai

1

W= 

3 =

d

11 '

b

C

N

3

99 = 

O

y

N

co, 3

U

y

O

to 

s> 

p

o-

4

C13

0

0

0

64

cd

00

ami

Z

o —

cq3

C

a 

O

N  

to

to

C12

4) 

3

0 ° 

u ° rn

U> 

O

O

N

p

0

0

GA

o

E; , 

a — 

w

p

to

co

0O
rn >, 

cl

cl, 

0

3

on

c

a.

W

bb

w

C;

3

0

ami

0

5: ,

5:

Zm

CdOHUU
1.

0d

M0Mri



Item B



Item C



Military & 1st Responders 
Appreciation Festival

w.s item a

- Moved to Presentations



NC FREEDOM FEST•2023 Sponsors…



NC Freedom Fest
• NC Freedom Fest 2023 event elements – 

• Thursday, 9/7/23
• Taste of Wayne – United Way of Wayne County
• Paramount Theatre – Top Gun – FREE!

• Friday, 9/8/23
• Freedom Friday / RED = Remember Everyone Deployed

• Saturday, 9/9/23
• NC FF

• Military Appreciation Awards
• Art Contest – Arts Council & WCPS
• Flyover
• Car & Bike Show
• Craft Vendors
• Static Displays
• Kids Activities
• Food Trucks
• Live Music



NC Freedom Fest
• Schedule…

• 3 – 9:30 – Main event
• 3 -7

• Car show
• Craft vendors
• Static displays



NC Freedom Fest
• Artists

• 3 – 4:30 – Wood & Steel – street fair stage
• 3 – 4:15/4:30 – Pink Slips
• 4:30 – 6:15’ish – Soul Psychedelique
• 6:15 – 6:28 – Sponsor announcement / awards
• 6:28 – flyover
• 6:30 – 7:45 – Tyler Davis & Band
• 7:45 – closing comments / raffle / TY’s
• 8:00 – 9:30 – Elvie Shane



NC Freedom Fest
• Marketing…

• Sponsor / merchant engagement program
• TWC
• Curtis Media
• Social media
• Official Program
• Billboards
• Posters
• Bring a friend



NC Freedom Fest
• Event moments

• RED (Remember Everyone Deployed) Friday
• Opening
• Art Contest
• Military appreciation awards
• Flyover
• Flag salute
• Headliner



NC Freedom Fest
• Volunteers…

• United Way is supporting our online recruiting - 
• 50’ish needed for the event
• Will promote the needs & sign-up system…
• Vols will use a link to visit a site with the positions 

noted
• They select open slots & enter email & phone #
• System generated reminders



NC Freedom Fest

• Thank you – City of Goldsboro
• Event support
• Parks & Rec, PD, FD, Public works, DGDC, Travel & Tourism
• Paramount
• The Hub & Freedom Field

• Lots to be done for a successful 2023 event…



P a g e  1 | 4 

Item _______ 
CITY OF GOLDSBORO 

AGENDA MEMORANDUM 
AUGUST 21, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING AND FINAL COUNCIL ACTION (CONTINUANCE 
FROM JULY 17, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING) 

SU-5-23 Cemetery – T-intersection of Herbert St. and S. John St. ext. 

 ADDRESS: (TBD) 

PARCEL #: 2598792758 

OWNER: Goldsby Memorial Gardens Inc. 

APPLICANT: Timothy Goldsby 

BACKGROUND: The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of a private 
cemetery located in the General Industry (I-2) Zoning District. The General 
Industry Zoning district is established to accommodate the widest range of 
manufacturing, wholesale, and distribution uses. 

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, a cemetery is a permitted use 
in the General Industry Zoning District only after obtaining a Special Use Permit 
from Goldsboro City Council. In addition, the following are approval criteria for 
the proposed use: 

1. Chapels, mortuaries, mausoleums, administrative offices, and maintenance
buildings may be developed within the cemetery. Access to all buildings shall
be from within the cemetery. The minimum setback for all structures, excluding
gatehouses is one hundred feet from any exterior property line. Gatehouses are
excluded from any minimum setback.

2. The minimum setback for any grave or burial plot is fifty feet from any exterior
property line, except that any grave or burial plot shall be allowed within three
feet of a property line of an abutting parcel containing an existing cemetery.

3. Where a cemetery abuts a residentially developed or zoned property, it shall be
screened in accordance with Section 6.3 (Landscaping, Screening, and
Buffering Standards).

Zoning:  General Industry (I-2) 

Floodplain: 100-year 

Existing Use:  Vacant woodland. 

Acres:  2.9 

D









WINSLOW PL

S

JO
HN

ST

GRAHAM ST

HOUSE ST

BUNCHE DR

HERBERT ST

WINSLOW

CIR

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-5-23 
 Cemetery

SU-5-23
Timothy Goldsby
Cemetery
Timothy Goldsby
T-intersection of Herbert St. and S. John St. ext
2598792758

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



WINSLOW PL

S

JO
HN

ST

GRAHAM ST

HOUSE ST

BUNCHE DR

HERBERT ST

WINSLOW

CIR

R-9

R-9

R-9

R-6

R-9

I-2
R-9

I-2

R-16

NB

R-9

R-9

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-5-23
Cemetery

SU-5-23
Timothy Goldsby
Cemetery
Timothy Goldsby
T-intersection of Herbert St. and S. John St. ext
2598792758

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



WINSLOW PL

S

JO
HN

ST

GRAHAM ST

HOUSE ST

BUNCHE DR

HERBERT ST

WINSLOW

CIR

OI

OI

HDR

Industrial
Industrial

HDR

HDR

HDR

HDR

HDR

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-5-23
Cemetery

SU-5-23
Timothy Goldsby
Cemetery
Timothy Goldsby
T-intersection of Herbert St. and S. John St. ext
2598792758

CASE NO:
APPLICANT:
REQUEST:
LOCATION:
PIN #: 

REZONING REQUEST:



P a g e  1 | 4 

Item _______ 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
AGENDA MEMORANDUM 

AUGUST 21, 2023 COUNCIL MEETING 

SUBJECT: PUBLIC HEARING AND FINAL COUNCIL ACTION 
SU-13-23 Special Event Venue (POE/No ABC)– South of US 70W between 
Hargrove St. and Claridge Nursery Rd. 

    ADDRESS: 1316 W. Grantham St., Unit A & B 

    PARCEL #:  2690228003 

PROPERTY OWNER: Woodmont Goldsboro, LLC. 

APPLICANT: Heather Giddens 

BACKGROUND: The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the establishment of special 
event venues to include weddings, birthday parties, anniversaries, etc. 

The proposed Place of Entertainment w/no ABC permit is located in the 
Shopping Center Zoning District. The Shopping Center Zoning District is 
established to provide for a mix of office, retail, and service establishments in 
one development.  The district is intended to promote high quality, unified and 
accessible developments serving the needs of the community and surrounding 
area. 

According to the City’s Unified Development Code, Places of Entertainment 
w/no ABC are permitted only after obtaining a Special Use Permit from 
Goldsboro City Council. In addition, the following are approval criteria for the 
proposed use: 

1. Upon a finding that there has been an increase in the volume, intensity or
frequency of the use or a use different than set forth in the special use
permit, the reviewing authority after a public hearing may modify, suspend
or revoke the special use permit.

2. Six copies of the floor plan, drawn to scale, shall be submitted indicating the
proposed uses within the structure including the location and number of all
games and amusements.

3. A satisfactory statement setting forth the method and frequency of litter
collection and disposal shall be submitted with the site plan.

Frontage: Approx. 40 ft. 

Zoning:   Shopping Center 

E

Continued to 9/18/23





P a g e  3 | 4 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SHEET  
SU-13-23 HEATHER GIDDENS 

1316 W. GRANTHAM ST., UNITS A & B 
PLACE OF ENTERTAINMENT/ NO ABC PERMIT 

 
Staff comments in red.   
 

1. The proposal is to establish a Place of Entertainment with no ABC permits.  Specifically, 
the proposal is for the establishment of special event venues to include weddings, birthday 
parties, anniversaries, etc.   

 
• This use would not pose any immediate threat to public health or safety. 

 
• Consider aspects of the proposed use or development that may have a negative impact on 

public health and safety.   
 

• Discuss conditions, if any that Council might impose in order to make this finding. 
 

• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to protect 
public health and safety. 

 
• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 

 
___ Yes, the use will not materially endanger the public health or safety  

 
___ No, the use will materially endanger the public health or safety 
 
 
2. There was no evidence presented with the application that indicates the use will injure the 

beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property.  
 

• Consider aspects of the proposed use or development that may have a negative impact on 
the value of adjoining properties. 

 
• Consider aspects of the proposed use of development that make it a public necessity. 

(Note: most private applications for a special use permit will not rise to the level of a 
“public necessity”) 

 
• Discuss conditions, if any, that Council might impose to make this a finding. 

 
• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to protect 

the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting properties. 
 

• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 
 

____Yes, the use will not substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property 
 
____ No, the use will substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property 



P a g e  4 | 4 
 

 
 

3. The proposed use will be located in the Shopping Center Zoning District. The proposed use 
of a Place of Entertainment with no ABC permit would be in harmony with this zoning 
district.  

 
• Consider aspects of the proposed use or development that may have a negative impact on 

the nature or character of the surrounding community. 
 

• Consider whether the proposed use or development is in general conformity with the 
Unified Development Ordinance. 

 
• Discuss conditions, if any, that Council might impose to make this finding. 

 
• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to ensure 

harmony with existing development and uses of the surrounding area. 
 

• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 
 
____ Yes, the use will be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area 

in which it is located  
  
____ No, the use will not be in harmony with existing development and uses within the 

area in which it is located 
 
  
4. The Land Use Plan shows the property as being in the Commercial designation.  The 

proposed use will not serve as a detriment to this designation and this use supports goals 
identified in the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan.  

 
• Consider whether the proposed use or development is in general conformity with the City 

of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 
 

• Discuss conditions, if any, that the Board might impose to make this finding. 
 

• For each condition imposed, if any, state the reason the condition is necessary to ensure 
general conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

 
• Consider any conditions to be applied to the application. 

 
____ Yes, the use will be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro Comprehensive 

Land Use Plan  
  
_____ No, the use will not be in general conformity with the City of Goldsboro 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
 



1312 E
1220 A

1400

1326

1305

1318 C

1409

1312 G

1316
D

1401

1220

1314 A

1320

1316 B

1309

1312
D

1406

1322

1318

1308

1306

1318 D

1316 E
1316 A

1301

1316 F
1318

B

1310

1307

1411

1312 A

1324

1407

1420

1312
F

1307 A

GRANTHAM

ST

GRANTHAM ST GRANTHAM ST

NE
VE

LS
 

ST

W

GRANTHAM ST

W
GRANTHAM

ST

GRANTHAM

ST

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-13-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUST: Event Space

SU-13-23
Event Space
Heather Giddens
2690-22-8003

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:



1312
E

1220 A

1400

1326

1305

1318 C

1409

1312 G

1316
D

1401

1220

1314 A

1320

1316 B

1309

1406

1322

1312 C

1318

1308

1306

1318 D

1316 E
1316 A

1301

1318 B

1310

1307

1411

1312 A

1324

1312 B

1407

1420

1307 A

GRANTHAM

ST

GRANTHAM ST GRANTHAM
ST

NE
VE

LS
 

ST

W

GRANTHAM

ST

W GRANTHAM

ST

GRANTHAM

ST

I-2

SC

I-2

GB

I-2
RM-NC

I-2

GB

O&I-I

GB
RM-NC

R-16

GB

I-2

GB

GB

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-13-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUST: Event Space

SU-13-23
Event Space
Heather Giddens
2690-22-8003

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:



1312
E

1220 A

1400

1326

1305

1318 C

1409

1312 G

1316
D

1401

1220

1314 A

1320

1316 B

1309

1406

1322

1312 C

1318

1308

1306

1318 D

1316 E
1316 A

1301

1318 B

1310

1307

1411

1312 A

1324

1312 B

1407

1420

1307 A

GRANTHAM

ST

GRANTHAM ST GRANTHAM
ST

NE
VE

LS
 

ST

W

GRANTHAM

ST

W GRANTHAM

ST

GRANTHAM

ST

OI

Commercial

Industrial

0 200 400100
Feet .

The data represented on this map has been compiled by the best 
methods available. Accuracy is contingent upon the source information 
as compiled by various agencies and departments both internal and
external to the City of Goldsboro, NC. Users of the data represented
on this map are hereby notified that the primary information sources
should be consulted for verification of the information contained herein. 
The City of Goldsboro and the companies contracted to develop these 
data assume no legal responsibilities for the information or accuracy 
contained on this map. It is strictly forbidden to sell or reproduce these 
maps or data for any reason without the written consent of the City of 
Goldsboro.

SU-13-23
SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUST: Event Space

SU-13-23
Event Space
Heather Giddens
2690-22-8003

SPECIAL USE REQUEST;

CASE NO:
REQUEST:
APPLICANT:
PIN:



F



1  | P a g e  

 
 

CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program 
City of Goldsboro 

200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro, NC 27530 
 

   
 

Program Overview 

The City of Goldsboro receives Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds annually 

from the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) to develop viable 

communities.  These funds are being administered by the City to rehabilitate owner-

occupied properties of qualifying homeowners, as funds are available. Assistance will be 

provided to low to moderate-income households with significant home repair needs. 

 
This document includes the Program Guidelines & Application Form for Goldsboro’s CDBG 

Housing Rehabilitation Program. Homeowners interested in applying for assistance are 

encouraged to carefully review the enclosed guidelines, which cover topics including 

program goals and objectives, eligible rehabilitation projects, application and eligibility 

requirements, income requirements, terms of financial assistance, etc. 

 
Please note that homeowners must submit a completed application to be considered. An 

application will be considered incomplete if it does not contain all required forms and 

documentation on the checklist.  

 

Please note that although we wish to help everyone with a need, we have limited 
funding and can only assist qualifying households on a first-come, first-served basis 

per year. If your household is eligible and funds have been exhausted, your 
application will be placed on a waitlist. 

 

 
The Community Relations & Development Staff is available to answer any questions you may 

have about the program and the application process. Please find staff contact on Page 13.  



2  | P a g e  

Program Guidelines 
 

Program Goals & Objectives: 

 

The purpose of Goldsboro’s CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program is to rehabilitate owner- 

occupied homes in Goldsboro that have significant maintenance needs. In the context of this 

program, “rehabilitation” means taking an existing home and bringing it up to the required 

standards set by the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD). 

 
Quick Summary of Financial Assistance: 

 

Assistance will be provided in the form of a no-cost, zero percent-interest, deferred 

forgivable loan of up to $30,000. This means that most recipients will be expected to pay zero 

dollars toward the loan, which will typically be forgiven once certain requirements are met. 

Individual project costs will vary depending on the physical condition of the home and other 

factors. The City’s Procurement Manager and Community Relations & Development Staff will 

competitively bid construction projects to qualifying contractors and will select contractors 

to complete the work. For more information about the terms of financial assistance and loan 

forgiveness, see page 6. 

 
Eligible Rehabilitation Activities: 

 
Funds may be used to finance the rehabilitation of privately-owned single-family homes. 

Funds can be used for labor, materials, and associated rehabilitation costs for the following 

projects (including but not necessarily limited to): 

❑ Repairs to address moderate to severe deterioration of building systems caused by 

deferred maintenance (e.g., foundations, floors, walls, roofs, plumbing, electrical, 

HVAC, windows/doors, egress, etc.). 

❑ Replacement of principal fixtures and components of the existing structure (e.g., 

built-in appliances like sinks, toilets, and bathtubs; fans, light fixtures, smoke, and 

carbon monoxide detectors, etc.). 

❑ Installation of security devices, including smoke detectors and dead bolt locks. 

❑ Renovation through alterations, addition to, or enhancements of the home. 

❑ Abatement of lead hazards, if necessary. 

❑ Improvements to increase the efficient use of energy in the structure through such 
as means as installation of storm windows and doors, siding, wall and attic 



3  | P a g e  

insulation, and conversion, modification, or replacement of heating and cooling 

equipment. 

❑ Improvements to increase the efficient use of water through such means as water 
saving faucets and shower heads and repair of water leaks. 

❑ Improvements designed to remove material and architectural barriers that restrict 
mobility and accessibility of elderly or disabled persons. 

 
Because program funds are being used to bring homes up to required standards, 

rehabilitation projects will be designed to accomplish the following minimum targets. Each 

home should: 

 

✓ Contain a safe, sanitary kitchen for the storage and preparation of food. 

✓ Contain a bathroom with permanent and properly operating fixtures. 

✓ Be properly treated for and free of insects and pests. 

✓ Have structurally sound building systems (foundation, floors, walls, roof, plumbing, 

electrical, HVAC, windows/doors, egress, etc.). 

✓ Have doors for proper entry and exit. 

✓ Have electrical wiring and fixtures that are safe and operating properly. 

✓ Have plumbing fixtures and piping that are safe and operating properly. 

✓ Have a properly operating HVAC system. 

✓ Have a properly operating smoke and carbon monoxide detection system. 

✓ Be free of lead-based paint hazards and other environmental hazards. 

✓ Meet the physical needs of disabled or elderly persons through improvements like 
widened doorways, ramps, level entry and doorways, handicap grab bars, etc.). 

 
Please note that achieving the above minimum standards will take priority in all rehab 

projects. Given limited funding, purely aesthetic, architectural or design 

improvements that are not necessarily tied to remediating a problem with a major 

building system may not receive funding. 



4  | P a g e  

Evaluating Housing Condition: 

 

As part of the application review process, an independent contractor will evaluate the 

physical condition of the applicant’s home and will decide on the overall need for assistance. 

Given limited funding, priority will be given to households with the greatest overall need. 

Although we wish to help everyone, funding is limited and only a certain number of 

applicants will be selected for the program. 

 
A house may have a combination of severe and moderate conditions. For a condition to count 

as either severe or moderate, there must be several occurrences of the condition, or the 

condition must be overwhelming. 

 
The evaluation will be carried out by a licensed and certified contractor. During the 

evaluation, the contractor will determine the condition of the following building systems: 

 

❑ Foundation System 

❑ Floor System 

❑ Exterior Wall System 

❑ Roof System 

❑ Plumbing System 

❑ Electrical System 

❑ HVAC System (Heating/Chimneys) 

❑ Interior Wall System 

❑ Windows/Doors System 

❑ Egress System (Exits/Stairs/Porches/Stoops) 

During the evaluation, the contractor will consider the following key questions to determine 

the severity of the home’s condition: 

 

 
Foundation 

System 

✓ Is the foundation incapable of supporting normal use load? 
✓ Is there major deterioration of wood support members? 
✓ Are foundation supports unstable and subject to movement? 
✓ Do any foundation walls need to be repaired or replaced? 

 
 

Floor System 

✓ Are there holes in the subfloors? 
✓ Is there buckling in floors and/or severely unlevel floors? 
✓ Is there noticeable floor movement under walking stress? 
✓ Is there separation or disfigurement of flooring? 
✓ Is there damage to subfloor, joists, or girders? 
✓ Is the floor insulated? 



5  | P a g e  

 
Exterior Wall 

System 

✓ Are walls leaning or buckling? 
✓ Are there cracks or holes in the walls? 
✓ Is the siding deteriorated, loose, or missing? 
✓ Are the exterior walls weather-tight? 

 
 

Roof System 

✓ Is the roof sagging or structurally unsound? 
✓ Are there cracks or holes in the roof? 
✓ Is the roof leaking? 
✓ If metal, is the roof rusted? 
✓ Are there any loose or damaged shingles? 
✓ Is there deteriorated or loose flashing? 

 

 
Plumbing System 

✓ Is there hot and cold running water? 
✓ Is there a shower/tub, lavatory, or toilet? 
✓ Is the plumbing non-repairable? (i.e., leaking galvanized pipes) 
✓ Are existing plumbing fixtures and/or pipes repairable? 
✓ Is the hot water heater malfunctioning? 

 
 

Electrical System 

✓ Less than 100 AMP service and lack of main disconnect for house? 
✓ Does the entire electrical system need to be changed to meet 

appropriate code requirements? 
✓ Is the existing electrical wiring system unsafe? 
✓ Is there an adequate number of outlets in the house? 
✓ Are the existing outlets malfunctioning or repairable? 

 
 
 
 

 
HVAC System 

✓ Does the house require installation of new HVAC system? 
✓ Is there an adequate heating system in the house? 
✓ Is the existing heating system unvented? 
✓ Is the heating system unable to heat habitable rooms and 

bathrooms to 70 degrees Fahrenheit? 
✓ Does the chimney need to be removed, repaired, or replaced? 
✓ Is the chimney severely leaning? 
✓ Are there missing bricks or essential parts in the chimney? 
✓ Is there a need to replace or repair component parts of the HVAC 

system, such as re-hanging of loose ductwork, replacement of 
supply registers, thermostats, etc.? 

✓ Is the existing vented heating system defective but repairable? 
✓ Are there excessive leaks in heat duct system? 

 

The number of building systems in your home where there is a moderate or severe condition, 

and the severity of the condition, will be carefully considered in the evaluation process. For 

more information on the application review and selection process, see page 10. 



6  | P a g e  

Terms of Financial Assistance: 

 

It is vitally important for all applicants to carefully review these Program Guidelines, 
including the financial terms and conditions for assistance. Although most recipients will be 
expected to pay zero dollars for receiving assistance, there are some limited circumstances 
in which repayment of some portion of a loan may be required. Additionally, applicants 
should be aware that the assistance provided by this program is secured be a lien on the 
recipient’s home. More information is provided below. 

 
What is the form of assistance? Assistance will be provided in the form of a no-cost, zero 
percent-interest, deferred loan, also known as a deferred forgivable loan, subject to 
certain ownership and occupancy conditions. The assistance is secured by a lien on the 
recipient’s home. Recipients will sign loan documents including a Promissory Note and Deed 
of Trust covering the cost of rehabilitation. 

 
What is a deferred forgivable loan? These are loans in which the entire principal and 
interest payments are deferred to a future date with terms to forgive the entire repayment 
amount. The loan is forgiven incrementally, such as forgiving one-fifth of the loan each year 
over five (5) years until the end of the repayment term. At the end of the repayment term, 
the repayment amount is reduced to zero, and the recipient has paid a total of zero dollars. 

 
What are the ownership and occupancy conditions? The recipient must maintain the 
property as their primary residence for the entire repayment term. For example, if a 
recipient’s loan repayment period is five (5) years, the recipient must continue to live in the 
home for five (5) years. If the recipient sells the home within the repayment period, a certain 
portion of the loan must be repaid. In most cases, selling the home “early” is the only 
circumstance in which a recipient will be expected to repay a portion of the loan. *Important 
Note: For heirs of property, documentation of ownership must be provided with application. 

 
What is a lien and how will it impact me? In the context of this program, a contractual lien 
is a security interest or legal right in one’s property by a lender with the consent of the 
property owner. The lien gives the lender the right to collect money from the sale of the 
property if the property is sold within the repayment period, as explained above. The lien is 
mutually agreed upon between the recipient/homeowner and the lender and is secured 
through a written agreement, like a mortgage. 

 
This type of contractual lien is not like other types of liens, such as tax liens, which are forced 
liens acquired by court order because of failure to pay taxes. Instead, a contractual lien is 
more like a mortgage, where the home is security for a loan. The lien generally stays in effect 
until the underlying obligation to the lender is satisfied. In the context of this program, the 
underlying obligation will be satisfied once the repayment period has elapsed, and the 
repayment has been reduced to zero. At that point, the loan has been forgiven and the lien is 
removed. 

 
In simple terms, a recipient of assistance through this program will be expected to 

pay zero dollars toward the loan if they maintain the property as their primary 
residence for the entire repayment period. 



7  | P a g e  

Determining Your Eligibility to Apply  

Title Search: 

Please Note: The City Attorney will perform a title search on your property to ensure there 
are no outstanding liens or judgments on the property. In the event of such, the department 
will have to reconsider approving your application. 

Income Requirements: 

Please Note: The Community Relations & Development Staff is available to answer any 

questions you may have about financial eligibility, income calculation, and income limits. 

Please contact John Wilson or Krystal Fuller, Community Relations & Development Staff, at 

(919) 580-4359 / (919) 580-4318. 
 

The information in the section below is provided to help you make some basic 

determinations about whether you might qualify. The Application Form, enclosed with these 

Program Guidelines, includes a checklist of financial documents that must be submitted with 

the application. The Community Relations & Development Staff will calculate your annual 

income and determine your income category based on the documentation you submit. 

 
What is the income limit to apply? Only applicants in certain income categories are eligible 

to apply for assistance through this program. Most households earning less than 80% of 

Median Family Income (MFI) are eligible to apply. Your income is based on the number of 

persons in your family and the household’s total annual income. 

 
How will my income be determined? There are three (3) eligible Income Categories: 

 

❑ Low Income (80% of Median Family Income) 

❑ Very Low Income (50% of Median Family Income) 

❑ Extremely Low Income (30% of Median Family Income) 

 
Step 1. Calculate Annual Income. First, staff will calculate your household’s Annual Income. 

This is defined as the gross amount of income of all adults (over 18) household members that 

is expected to be received during the coming 12-month period. It includes all amounts going 

to the family head or spouse or to any other family member, or which are anticipated to be 

received from a source outside the family. The official definition of annual income is 

established in federal regulation 24 CFR 5.609. 



8  | P a g e  

Annual income includes, but is not limited to: 

✓ The full amount, before any payroll or deductions, of wages and salaries, overtime 

pay, commissions, fees, tips and bonuses, and other compensation for personal 

services. 

✓ The net income from the operation of a business or profession. 

✓ Interests, dividends, and other net income of any kind from real or personal property. 

✓ The full number of periodic payments received from Social Security, annuities, 

insurance policies, retirement funds, pensions, disability or death benefits, and other 

similar types of periodic receipts, including a lump-sum amount or prospective 

monthly amounts for the delayed start of a periodic amount. 

✓ Payments in lieu of earnings, such as unemployment and disability compensation, 

worker’s compensation and severance pay. 

✓ Welfare assistance payments not subject to exclusions. This includes, but is not 

limited to, periodic and determinable allowances, such as alimony and child support 

payments, etc. 

 
Annual income does not include the following (see 24 CFR 5.609 for complete list): 

 

⊗ Income from the employment of children under 18 years of age. 

⊗ Payments received for the care of foster children or foster adults (usually persons 

with disabilities unrelated to the tenant family who are unable to live alone). 

⊗ Lump-sum additions to family assets, such as inheritances, insurance payments 

(including payments under health and accident insurance and worker’s 

compensation), capital gains and settlement for personal or property loss. 

⊗ Amounts received by the family that are specifically for, or in reimbursement of, the 

cost of medical expenses for any family member. 

⊗ The full amount of student financial assistance paid directly to the student or to the 

educational institution. 

⊗ Temporary, nonrecurring, or sporadic income (including gifts). 

⊗ Earnings more than $480 for each full-time student 18 years or older (excluding the 

head of household and spouse). 

 
Note: It is important to provide an accurate income because knowingly submitting false 

financial information may disqualify you from receiving assistance. 



9  | P a g e  

Step 2. Determine Your Income Category. Once staff have calculated your annual income, we 
will use the chart below to determine your Income Category. Your Income Category is based 
on your annual income and the number of persons in your household. Find the column with 
the number of people in your household, then move down the rows until you find the row 
corresponding to your annual income. If your income is higher than the bottom row (80%), 
then your income is too high to receive assistance under this program. 

 
(The U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) annually publishes income 
calculations for each county in North Carolina. The chart below is specific to Goldsboro). 

 

FY 2023 Income Limits for Goldsboro, NC 
Based on Median Family Income of $72,600 

FY 2023 
Income 

Limit  

Persons in Household 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

 
Extremely Low    

(0%-30%) 

 
 

$14,550 
 

 
 

$16,600 
 

 
 

$18,700 

 
 

$20,750 

 
 

$22,450 

 
 

$24,100 

 
 

$25,750 

 
 

$27,400 

 
Very Low 

(31%-50%) 

 
$24,250 

 
$27,700 

 
$31,150 

 
$34,600 

 
$37,400 

 
$40,150 

 
$42,950 

 
$45,700 

 
Low          

(51%-60%) 

 
$29,100 

 
$33,240 

 
$37,380 

 
$41,520 

 
$44,880 

 
$48,180 

 
$51,540 

 
$54,840 

 
Moderate 

(61%-80%) 

 
$38,750 

 
$44,300 

 
$49,850 

 
$55,350 

 
$59,800 

 
$64,250 

 
$68,650 

 
$73,100 

 
Examples: 

 

✓ If your family of four (4) has an annual income of $49,900, you are eligible to apply 
because you make less than $55,350, which is the income limit for a family of that 
size. You are in the Moderate-Income Category. 

 
✓ If your family of two (2) has an annual income of $26,000, you are eligible to apply 

because you make less than $27,700, which is the income limit for a family of that 
size. You are in the Very Low-Income Category. 

 
⊗ If your family of four (4) has an annual income of $65,000, you are not eligible to 

apply because you make more than $55,350, which is the income limit for a family of 
that size. Your income is too high to receive assistance under this program. 



10  | P a g e  

Other Basic Requirements: 

 

Finally, applicants should check that they meet the other basic eligibility requirements: 

 
✓ The applicant must be the owner of the property to be assisted. 

✓ The applicant must use the property as their primary residence. 

o This program is limited to owner-occupied residences. Rental properties and 
similar investment properties are not eligible. 

✓ The applicant must be low-moderate income based on the area median family 
income in the chart on Page 9 of this program guide. 

✓ The applicant must have current homeowners’ insurance policy. 

✓ The applicant cannot be more than 1 year delinquent in Wayne County 
property taxes. 

 
Application Review Process: 

 

1. Initial Screening. Once an application is submitted, the Community Relations & 
Development Staff will review it for completeness. Incomplete applications will not be 
considered. An application is considered incomplete if it omits required information 
and/or documentation, including income information, signed authorizations, current 
mortgage statement, homeowners’ insurance policy, etc. 

 
2. Eligibility Review. Fully completed applications will be reviewed to confirm the 

applicant’s eligibility. If the applicant does not meet one or more requirements, the 
Community Relations & Development Staff will notify the applicant in writing. The notice 
will list the reasons the applicant is ineligible to receive assistance. 

 
What happens if my home is selected? 

 
If your application is approved, congratulations! There are several steps remaining before 

work can get started. Please carefully review the information below. 

1. Conference with Staff. During the conference, the program guidelines will be reviewed, 

and the homeowner will sign an acknowledgement of the review.  Also, a written 

agreement must be signed between the homeowner and the City of Goldsboro, who is 

responsible for administering funds provided by HUD. This agreement will define the 

amount of financial assistance being provided, the scope of work to be performed, the 

date of completion and the rehabilitation standards to be met. 

2. Pre-Rehabilitation Inspection. The construction contractor may want to visit the home 

again to conduct a more comprehensive inspection. All parts of the home must be made 

accessible for inspection, including the attic and crawlspace. The owner should report 

any known problems such as electrical short circuits, blinking lights, roof leaks, etc. Each 

unit will be evaluated for energy-saving opportunities and for any additional 



11  | P a g e  

environmental concerns, such as lead-based paint hazards, radon, and asbestos. 

3. Finalizing the Scope of Work & Cost Estimate. The licensed contractor will prepare a 

complete and detailed written work specification (known as a “work write- up”). This 

document will outline the entire Scope of Work of the rehabilitation project. The 

contractor will also prepare a final cost estimate.  

4. Competitive Bidding. The Work Write-Up & Bid Documents will be conveyed to all 

contractors from the approved contractor’s registry who will be given no less than seven 

(7) days in which to inspect the property and prepare a construction bid. 

Construction Contractors will need access to all parts of the house in order to prepare a 

bid. A bid opening will be conducted at a specified date, time, and location, with all 

bidders invited to attend. 

5. Contractor Selection. In making a final selection for the award of the general 

construction contract, consideration will be given to the proposed subcontractors, their 

past work, general qualifications, financial stability, etc. 

6. Loan Closing & Contract Execution. Loan documents (Promissory Note and Deed of 

Trust) will be prepared by the City of Goldsboro as lender and executed by the 

homeowner. (By law, homeowners have the right to hire legal representation of their 

choosing at a loan closing). Rehabilitation contract documents will be executed by the 

homeowner and construction contractor with the City signing on as an interested third 

party prior to the commencement of any construction. The City of Goldsboro will 

facilitate the loan closing and recordation of these documents at the Wayne County 

Register of Deeds office. 

7. Pre-Construction Conference. A pre-construction conference will be held at a 

predetermined location. At this time, the homeowner, construction contractor, the 

Community Relations & Development Staff, and other appropriate program 

representatives, will discuss the program guidelines, details of the work to be completed, 

including material and finish selections. Starting and ending dates for construction will 

be finalized, along with any special arrangements such as weekend or evening work 

hours and disposition of items to be removed from the home. Once completed, a “Proceed 

Order” will be issued, formally instructing the construction contractor to begin work by 

the agreed-upon start date.  If applicable to the property, Lead Safe Housing will be 

discussed as well. 

8. Construction. The construction contractor is responsible for obtaining and posting all 

permits for the project before beginning work. The Community Relations & Development 

Staff will closely monitor the construction contractor during the construction period and 

City of Goldsboro Inspections and Code Enforcement will help inspect the work. To 

protect personal property, the homeowner will be responsible for working with the 

construction contractor toward clearing work areas of personal property as needed as 

much as practicable. The construction contractor will be responsible for all clearing and 



12  | P a g e  

cleaning activities necessary due to construction activities. 

9. Change Orders (if needed). All changes to the Scope of Work must be approved by the 

owner, the construction contractor, and the Community Relations & Development Staff. 

The change must be reduced in writing as a contract amendment (“Change Order”). The 

owner, construction contractor, and two program representatives must execute any 

change order agreements to the construction contract. 

10. Inspection. Once the rehabilitation work has been completed, City of Goldsboro 

Inspections and Community Relations & Development Staff will work with homeowners 

to schedule a date for a required final inspection of the work completed.   

11. Project Completion & Closeout Certifications. When both the homeowner and 

Community Relations & Development Staff are satisfied that the contract has been 

fulfilled, the homeowner, Community Relations & Development Staff, and City of 

Goldsboro Chief Inspector “sign off” on the work. These documents will certify that the 

project has been completely and satisfactorily completed. All material and workmanship 

will be guaranteed by the contractor for a period of one (1) year from the date of 

completion of the work as established by the date on the final pay requisition. 

12. Post-Construction Conference. Following construction, the contractor and the 

Community Relations & Development Staff will sit down with the Homeowner one more 

time. At this conference, the contractor will hand over all owner’s manuals and 

warranties on equipment and materials to the homeowner, if applicable. The contractor 

and Community Relations & Development Staff will review operating and maintenance 

requirements for the new equipment, materials, and appliances and discuss general 

maintenance of the home with the homeowner. The homeowner will have the 

opportunity to ask any final questions about the work. 

13. Final Loan Amount Determination. If, upon completion of all rehabilitation work, the 

contractor price has changed because of change orders, the City of Goldsboro will prepare 

an estoppel for a loan reduction or modification agreement for loan increases as 

necessary at the time of closeout of the unit to modify the loan amount. The loan will 

remain the property of the City, with original documents remaining at Goldsboro City 

Hall for storage and servicing.  

14. Warranty Period. It is very important that any problems with the work that was 

performed be reported by the homeowner to the Community Relations & Development 

Staff as soon as possible, in writing.  All bona fide defects in materials and workmanship 

reported within one (1) year of completion of construction will be corrected free of 

charge by the contractor. 

 

 

 



13  | P a g e  

 

Our top priority is to ensure a successful project. We are committed to providing a high 

level of customer service and attention to detail so that you feel satisfied with the 

rehabilitation work completed at your home. If you have any questions, comments, or 

concerns, please contact the Community Relations & Development Staff. 

 
Staff Name Phone Email 

John “Bradley” Wilson 
Sr. CR&D Specialist 

(919) 580-4359 JWilson@goldsboronc.gov 
 

Krystal Fuller 
CR&D Specialist 

(919) 580-4318 KMFuller@goldsboronc.gov 
 

Felecia D. Williams 
CR&D Director 

(919) 580-4360 FDWilliams@goldsboronc.gov 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:JWilson@goldsboronc.gov
mailto:KMFuller@goldsboronc.gov
mailto:FDWilliams@goldsboronc.gov


Application Instructions 
 

An Application Form is enclosed with these Program Guidelines. Applicants are strongly 
encouraged to review the application form carefully and fully along with the attached 
official notices, privacy statement, and authorization forms prior to beginning the 
application. 

 
In addition to the application, the City of Goldsboro is also required by the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to obtain the following documentation from each 
applicant. Documentation should be from the current year. Please do not submit 
outdated information, as this will delay the application review process. 

 
Any documentation submitted to the City of Goldsboro is kept strictly confidential. 

 

Application Checklist: CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 

 Last 3 paycheck stubs of anyone living in your home that is employed. 

 

 

Proof of any supplemental income such as child support, retirement, rent 
income, supplemental security income, commissions, overtime pay, severance 
pay, etc. 

 

 Last 2 years 1040 tax forms, if required to file. 
 

 Last 2 months checking/savings account statements. 
 

 Current mortgage statement, if applicable. 
 

 Current homeowners’ insurance policy. 
 

 Current utility bill (electric, water, etc.) 
 

 Driver’s license or State Issued ID. 
 

 General Warranty Deed  
 

 Receipt that taxes on property have been paid (no more than 1 year delinquent) 

 
Once you have gathered all the above documents and completed the attached application 
form (beginning on the next page), please submit your application to Community Relations 
& Development Staff at City Hall. 

 

Please Note: Eligibility does not guarantee the receipt of financial assistance. 

 
 



1  | P a g e 
 

 

 

 Official Application Form 
   CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program 
    City of Goldsboro • 200 N. Center Street, Goldsboro NC 27530  

 

 

Case No: (Office Use Only) 
 Type of Assistance: 

0% Interest, Deferred 

Forgivable Loan 

 

Instructions: Please complete all fields in this application form to the best of your ability. If you have any questions, 
please contact the Community Relations & Development Staff at (919) 580-4359 or (919) 580-4318. 

 

Section 1. Property Condition 

Type of Assistance Requested (Primary Needs): Considering the condition of your home, which building systems are in 
moderate to severe need of repair? Please select all that apply. (Later in the review process, a licensed contractor will 
visit your home to determine if any other building systems are in need of repair.) 

❑ Foundation & Floors ❑ Roof ❑ HVAC/AC 

❑ Interior Walls ❑ Plumbing ❑ Windows/Doors 

❑ Exterior Walls ❑ Electrical ❑ Egress (Exits) 

Other Needs: Using the space below, please briefly describe any other major repair needs you have. Please refer to the 
Program Guidelines for more information on Eligible Rehabilitation Activities. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Section 2. Applicant & Household Information 

Applicant / Head of Household Spouse/Partner/Other 

Name:  Name:  

Present Address:  Present Address:  

City/State/Zip:  City/State/Zip:  

Telephone Number:  Telephone Number:  

Marital Status:  Marital Status:  

Date of Birth:  Date of Birth:  

Age:  Age:  

Sex:  Sex:  

 

 

 
 



2  | P a g e  

Applicant / Head of Household 

(Continued) 
Spouse/Other 

(Continued) 

Race:  Race:  

Social Security No.:  Social Security No.:  

Email Address:  Email Address:  

Name of Employer:  Name of Employer:  

Address of Employer:  Address of Employer:  

City/State/Zip:  City/State/Zip:  

Years Employed:  Years Employed:  

Other Household Information 

Total number of persons living in the household: 
 

Have you ever applied for or received assistance from any 
HUD funded program? (Y/N) 

 

 
Has the home previously been improved by use of a 
Federal Grant and/or a Federally subsidized loan for 
housing improvements? (Y/N) If yes, please provide date. 

 

Section 3. Property Information 

Homeowners Insurance? ( ) Yes ( ) No Insurance Company: 

Is this your Primary Residence? Permanent Foundation? ( ) Yes ( ) No 

Owner-Occupied? ( ) Yes ( ) No Deed in Name of: 

Address of Owner (if different from above): 

Heir to Property? ( ) Yes ( ) No Name of Heir: 

Address of Heir (Street/City/State/Zip): 

Date of Ownership? Date of Occupancy? 

Year Built: No. Rooms: No. Bedrooms: No. Baths: 

Family Room/Den: Living Area: SF Garage/Carport: AC: 

Other Real Estate: Value: 

Is there an existing mortgage on the property? ( ) Yes ( ) No 

Name/Address of Mortgage Lender: 

Original Mortgage Amount ($): Unpaid Balance ($): 
 
  



3  | P a g e  

Have you ever been obligated on a home loan, or a home improvement loan, which 
resulted in foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure, or judgement? (Y/N) 

 
( ) Yes 

 
( ) No 

If yes, please provide the Name & Property Address of Lender: 

Do you own any other real estate? ( ) Yes ( ) No 

If yes, please list address(es): Property # 1: 

Property # 2: Property # 3: 

(Section Below - Office Use Only. Skip to Section 4. Income Information) 

Tax Map: Parcel Number: 

Tax Value of Property Per Tax Statement ($): Female Head of Household? 

Remaining economic life of structure: 

If new resident, has applicant occupied home 90 days or longer? 

Estimated cost of general property improvements included in request for assistance: 

Type of Assistance Needed: 

Section 4. Income Information 

Annual Income. “Annual Income” is defined in 24 CFR Part 5 as the gross amount of income of all adult household 
members that is expected to be received during the coming 12-month period. 

  
Head of Household 

Spouse/Partner or 
Other Income Producer 

 
Other Income Producer 

 
Other Income Producer 

Job # 1: 
    

Job # 2:     

Job # 3:     

Social Security:     

Retirement:     

Public Assistance:     

V.A.:     

Rent Income     

Interest/Investments:     

Other Income # 1:     

Other Income # 2:     

Totals (Sum Column):     

Total Calculated Income of All Persons in Household ($): 



4  | P a g e  

Section 5. Dependents & Other Information 

Dependent # 1 

Name: Age: 

Relationship: Social Security Number: 

If over eighteen (18), please explain dependency: 

Dependent # 2 

Name: Age: 

Relationship: Social Security Number: 

If over eighteen (18), please explain dependency: 

Dependent # 3 

Name: Age: 

Relationship: Social Security Number: 

If over eighteen (18), please explain dependency: 

Dependent # 4: 

Name: Age: 

Relationship: Social Security Number: 

If over eighteen (18), please explain dependency: 

Other Income Producing Household Members 

Name: Social Security Number: 

Name: Social Security Number: 

Nearest Relative Not Living With You 

Name: Relationship: 

Address: Telephone: 

Name: Relationship: 

Address: Telephone: 



5  | P a g e  

 

 
CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program 

PERSONAL INFORMATION RELEASE AUTHORIZATION 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 
 

I/We hereby authorize the release of any personal and financial information requested, including: 

Employment and income records 

Checking account & savings deposit records and balances 

Mortgage loan balance and payment history 

 
A photographic copy of this authorization may be deemed to be the equivalent of the original and may be 
used as a duplicate original. 

 
 

Acknowledgment 
 

I acknowledge that I have received a copy of CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program Privacy Statement. 
 
 

Date     
Signature 

 
 

Date     
Signature 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



6  | P a g e  

 
CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program 

 

PRIVACY STATEMENT 
 

We recognize and respect the privacy expectations of today’s consumers and the requirements of applicable federal 
and state privacy laws. We believe that making you aware of how we use your non-public personal information 
(“Personal Information”), and to whom it is disclosed, will form the basis for a relationship of trust between us and the 
public that we serve. This Privacy Statement provides that explanation. We reserve the right to change this Privacy 
Statement from time to time consistent with applicable privacy laws. 

 
In the course of our business, we may collect Personal Information about you from the following sources: 

 
▪ From applications or other forms we receive from you or your authorized representative; 

▪ From your transactions with, or from the services being performed by, us, our affiliates, or others; 

▪ From the public records maintained by governmental entities that we either obtain directly from those 
entities, or from our affiliates or others; and 

 
Our Policies Regarding the Protection of the Confidentiality and Security of Your Personal Information 

 
We maintain physical, electronic, and procedural safeguards to protect your Personal Information from unauthorized 
access or intrusion. We limit access to the Personal Information only to those employees who need such access in 
connection with providing products or services to you or for other legitimate business purposes. 

 
Our Policies and Practices Regarding the Sharing of Your Personal Information 

 
We may share your Personal Information with our affiliates, such as insurance companies, agents, and other real 
estate settlement service providers. We also may disclose your Personal Information: 

 
▪ to agents, brokers or representatives to provide you with services you have requested; 

▪ to third-party contractors, mortgage lenders, insurance agents, or service providers who provide services 
on our behalf; and 

▪ to others who provide products or services that we believe you may find of interest. 
 

In addition, we will disclose your Personal Information when you direct or give us permission, when we are required by 
law to do so, or when we suspect fraudulent or criminal activities. We also may disclose your Personal Information when 
otherwise permitted by applicable privacy laws such as, for example, when disclosure is needed to enforce our rights 
arising out of any agreement, transaction, or relationship with you. 

 
 

One of the important responsibilities of some of our affiliated companies is to record documents in the public 
domain. Such documents may contain your Personal Information. 

 
*APPLICANT COPY* 



G







































H



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 5 6— 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE 2023 EDWARD BYRNE MEMORIAL
JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT ( JAG) APPLICATION

WHEREAS, the City of Goldsboro wishes to submit an application for the 2023
Justice Assistance Grant Funds; and

WHEREAS, the Goldsboro Police Department wishes to purchase ( 4) Four in -car
camera systems and IFAK ( individual first aid kits) for officers, in the amount of

29, 433. 00. This will be used to document officer and citizen interactions and rendering
aid to officers in the event of violence or injury to the officer. 

WHEREAS, the Wayne County Sheriff's Office wishes to utilize their
18, 269. 00 allotted portion of the grant funds towards the purchase of IFAK kits for their

deputies. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of
the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina, that: 

1. The Goldsboro Police Department is authorized to apply for the 2023 JAG
Funds in the amount of $47, 007. 00. 

2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after the
21St

day of
August, 2023. 

Attested by: 

ti

aura Getz, City Cle

David , Mayor



I



RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - $ 6

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A DEED OF

EASEMENT GRANTING AN EASEMENT TO BPR GOLDSBORO, LLC

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Goldsboro has heretofore found it in
the public interest to grant an easement to BPR Goldsboro, LLC; and

WHEREAS, the relocation of the dumpster site for the Homewood Suites, due to

NCDOT right-of-way expansion requires that the City of Goldsboro grant an easement to
BPR Goldsboro, LLC; and

WHEREAS, the dumpster easement is an area of approximately 1, 374 sq feet and
is located within an existing access and utility easement that was established in Plat
Cabinet P Slide 47- E; and

WHEREAS, upon 60 days' notice the City of Goldsboro shall have access to the
dumpster easement area, per the reversion clause located in the legal deed that grants this
easement to BPR Goldsboro, LLC; and

WHEREAS, the written description of the dumpster easement is; 

Beginning at an existing iron rebar on the right of way of N.C. S. R. 1003 New Hope Road, and being the north east
corner of Lot # 1, and being the north west corner of Lot # 2, as recorded in Plat Cabinet P, Slide 47- E, in the Wayne

County Registry, thence South 38° 01' 30" West, 58. 32 feet, a tie line to a new 60d nail in the line of a new dumpster
easement, thence following the new dumpster easement, North 45° 02' 50" West, 15. 11 feet, to a new 60d nail, thence, 
South 38° 01' 30" West, 47. 65 feet, to a new 60d nail, thence, South 51° 58' 30" East, 30. 00 feet, to a new 60d nail, 

thence, North 38° 01' 30" East, 44. 00 feet, to a new 60d nail, thence, North 45° 02' 50" West, 15. 11 feet, to the new

dumpster easement beginning point and containing 1, 374 square feet, 0. 031 acres. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
Goldsboro, North Carolina: 

That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to execute a
deed of easement granting an easement to BPR Goldsboro, LLC along City
property on West New Hope Road ( Parcel # 3610446826). 

2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after this 21" day of
August, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cl

m lwN-

4  ham, Mayor



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This instrument 
drafted by: 

Alex Lewis of 
Everett, Womble, & 
Lawrence, LLP 
 
 

After recording, mail 
to: 

 The City of Goldsboro 
 PO Drawer A 
 Goldsboro, NC 27532 
 

 
 

 

   

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF WAYNE 
 

DEED OF EASEMENT 
 

This deed, made this 21st day of August, 2023, by and between The City of Goldsboro (A North Carolina Municipal 
Corporation), (“Grantor”), whose address is PO Drawer A, Goldsboro, NC 27532 and BPR Goldsboro, LLC 
(“Grantee”), whose address is 2485 Penny Road, Suite 140, High Point, NC 27265.  

WITNESSETH: 

That whereas, the said Grantor is the owner of a certain lot of land in the City of Goldsboro, the same being the land 
conveyed to them by deed recorded in Book 1892, Page 813 in the office of the Register of Deeds of Wayne County; 
and whereas, the said Grantee is the owner of a certain lot of land conveyed to them by deed recorded in Book 3677, 
Page 451, in the office of the Register of Deeds of Wayne County; both of said deeds are hereby referred to for 
greater certainty of description; and 

Now, therefore, the said Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00), and other good and 
valuable consideration, to them in hand paid, do hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey unto the said Grantee an 
easement to construct and maintain across and upon said land of Grantors a dumpster or dumpster(s) on property 
more particularly described as follows: 

 
Beginning at an existing iron rebar on the right of way of N.C.S.R. 1003 New Hope Road, 
and being the north east corner of Lot #1, and being the north west corner of Lot #2, as 
recorded in Plat Cabinet P, Slide 47-E, in the Wayne County Registry, thence South 38° 
01’ 30” West, 58.32 feet, a tie line to a new 60d nail in the line of a new dumpster 
easement, thence following the new dumpster easement, North 45° 02’ 50” West, 15.11 
feet, to a new 60d nail, thence, South 38° 01’ 30” West, 47.65 feet, to a new 60d nail, 
thence, South 51° 58’ 30” East, 30.00 feet, to a new 60d nail, thence, North 38° 01’ 30” 



Page 2 of 3 
 

   

East, 44.00 feet, to a new 60d nail, thence, North 45° 02’ 50” West, 15.11 feet, to the new 
dumpster easement beginning point and containing 1,374 square feet, 0.031 acres. 

And to go upon said lands whenever the same is reasonably necessary for the purpose of inspecting, maintaining, 
and repairing said Dumpster or Dumpsters; provided, that in installing, constructing and repairing said Dumpster or 
Dumpsteres the said Grantee remove all surplus earth, make level the surface of the ground at or around said 
Dumpster or Dumpster(s), and interfere as little as is reasonably possible with any plants, fences, or other 
improvements upon the land of Grantor. 

This conveyance is SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING 

REVERSIONARY CLAUSE: IN THE EVENT THE EASEMENT HEREIN CONVEYED IS CONVEYED OR 
TRANSFERRED TO A THIRD (3RD) PARTY WHO WILL NOT USE THE ABOVE-DESCRIBED PROPERTY FOR A 
DUMPSTER OR DUMPSTER(S),  THE EASEMENT HEREIN CONVEYED SHALL AUTOMATICALLY REVERT 
BACK TO THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO. THIS PROVISION DOES NOT APPLY TO AN EASEMENT CONVEYED 
FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES OR A STREET/ROAD WIDENING PROJECT.  

REVOCABLE LICENSE: IN THE EVENT THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO DEEMS IT NECESSARY TO USE THE 
EASEMENT OR ABOVE-DESCRIBED PROPERTY FOR PUBLIC USE, THE CITY OF GOLDSBORO HEREBY 
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REVOKE ANY AND ALL RIGHTS CONVEYED HEREIN UPON SIXTY (60) DAYS’ 
WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE GRANTEE.  

To have and to hold said right and easement to them the said Grantee and their successors in title; it being agreed 
that the right and easement hereby granted is appurtenant to and runs with the land now owned by the Grantee and 
hereinabove referred to. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

   

 

 

 

 

In Testimony Whereof, the said Grantor has hereunto set their hands and seals the day and year first above-written. 
 
 
 

CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
 
 
    
           BY:
 ______________________________(SEAL)       
  David Ham, Mayor  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Laura Getz, Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WAYNE 
 
  This the ____ day of _______________________, 2021, Laura Getz, personally came 
before me, a Notary Public, in and for said State and County, who by me duly sworn, 
acknowledges that she, the said Clerk, knows the common seal of the CITY OF GOLDSBORO 
and is acquainted with David Ham, who is the Mayor of said municipal corporation; and that she, 
the said Clerk, saw the Mayor sign the foregoing instrument; and that she, the said Clerk, saw the 
said common seal of said corporation affixed thereto, and that she, the said Clerk, signed her 
name in attestation of said instrument in the presence of said Mayor of said municipal corporation.  
 
         
 ______________________________________ 
 Notary Public 
 
       
 _______________________________________  
 Printed Name of Notary 
 

My Commission Expires: ________________ 



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

200

1331

207

203

3305

3114

205

1332

3130

3130 Z

1330

3120

WAY
NE

MEM
OR

IAL

DR

CASSEDALE DR
W

NEW

HOPE

RD

® 200 0 200100 Feet

Dumpster Easement



LEGEND

WM

REV. NO. DATEREVISIONS FILE NAME: NEWEASEMENTDWG18X24.dwgDRAWN BY: MER

SCALE 1"=60' PROJECT NO. - 2023-05 SHEET NO.  1 OF 1

BEING A PORTION OF THAT CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND AS DESCRIBED IN

HOMEWOOD SUITES NEW DUMPSTER EASEMENT                DATE:  7-10-23

LAND  SURVEY
OR

PR
OF

ESSIONAL DEED BOOK 1892, PAGE 813 AND A PORTION OF TRACTS 1 AND 2 AS RECORDED IN
PLAT CABINET P, SLIDE 47-E

STONEY CREEK TOWNSHIP                  WAYNE COUNTY            NORTH CAROLINA

Feet
0 60 120

NCSR 1003

NEW HOPE ROADSITE

CASSEDALE
DRIVEW

AYN
E M

EM
ORIAL D

RIVE

NCSR
 15

56

N
O

RTH

N3
3°

 2
5' 

44
"E

  3
79

.0
9'

(G
RI

D 
TI

EL
IN

E 
NT

S)

EXISTING
IRON

REBAR

N85° 26' 53"W
397.63'

EXISTING
IRON

REBAR

EXISTING
IRON

REBAR

 EXISTING
MAG
NAIL

 EXISTING
MAG
NAIL

 EXISTING
MAG
NAIL

 EXISTING
MAG
NAIL

POINT
NOT FOUND

EXISTING
IRON

REBAR

EXISTING
IRON

REBAR

N85° 26' 53"W
19.13'

S51° 56' 14"E
331.70'

N38
° 0

1' 
30

"E

14
1.6

9'

N38
° 0

1' 
30

"E

29
3.6

1'

S46° 30' 00"E

333.24'

S46° 30' 00"E

252.19'

 CURVE DATA:
RADIUS = 188.00'

CHORD DISTANCE = 59.62'
CHORD BEARING = N76°19'23"W

LOT #1
BPR GOLDSBORO, LLC.

PLAT CABINET P, SLIDE 47-E
DB. 3677 PG. 451
PIN: 3610456176

LOT #3
CITY OF GOLDSBORO

PLAT CABINET P, SLIDE 47-E
DB. 1892 PG. 813
PIN: 3610446826

LOT #2
CITY OF GOLDSBORO

PLAT CABINET P, SLIDE 47-E
DB. 1892 PG. 813
PIN: 3610446826

NOTE:
PROJECT CONTROL:
ALL COORDINATES ARE BASED ON THE
NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLANE NAD
83(2011) DATUM.

CONTROL IRON #A
X=2,314,864.887  Y=604,561.379

NOTE:
PROJECT CONTROL:
ALL COORDINATES ARE BASED ON THE
NORTH CAROLINA STATE PLANE NAD
83(2011) DATUM.

CONTROL IRON #B
X=2,315,073.711  Y=604,877.730

POINT
NOT FOUND

POINT
NOT FOUND

60 D
NAIL
SET

60 D
NAIL
SET

60 D
NAIL
SET

60 D
NAIL
SET

EXISTING NCDOT
PERMANENT UTILITY EASEMENT

PROJECT U4753

EXISTING NCDOT

RIGHT OF WAY

 PROJECT U4753

EXISTING CITY OF GOLDSBORO

UTILITY & MULTI USE PATH

EASEMENT

P.C. M, SLIDE 82-D

P.C. O, SLIDE 32-A

28
.20

'
    

N38
° 0

1' 
30

"E

EXISTING CITY OF GOLDSBORO

UTILITY & MULTI USE PATH

EASEMENT

P.C. M, SLIDE 82-D

P.C. O, SLIDE 32-A

L1

 

L2

L3

L4

 

L5

L6

EX
IS

TI
NG A

CCES
S 

AN
D U

TI
LIT

Y

EA
SE

MEN
T

P.
C. P

, S
LID

E 
47

-E

PR
OPO

SE
D

DUMPS
TE

R

EA
SE

MEN
T

LINE TABLE
LINE DIRECTION DISTANCE

L1
L2
L3
L4
L5
L6

30.12'
15.11'

47.65'
30.00'
44.00'
15.11'

S38° 01' 30"W
N45° 02' 50"W

S51° 58' 30"E

N45° 02' 50"W

S38° 01' 30"W

N38° 01' 30"E

N.C.S.R. 1003 NEW HOPE ROAD

VARIABLE R/W

N.
C.

S.
R.

 1
55

6 
W

AY
NE

 M
EM

ORI
AL

 D
RI

VE

VA
RI

AB
LE

 R
/W

PROPOSED TOTAL EASEMENT
AREA: 1,374 SQUARE FEET

D
.B

. 1
89

2 
P.

G
. 8

13

NORTH

I,  MICHAEL E. REED, CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAT WAS DRAWN
UNDER MY SUPERVISION FROM AN ACTUAL SURVEY MADE
UNDER MY SUPERVISION (DEED DESCRIPTION RECORDED IN
BOOK 1892, PAGE 813, ETC.); THAT THE BOUNDARIES NOT
SURVEYED ARE CLEARLY INDICATED AS DRAWN FROM
INFORMATION REFERENCED HEREON, THAT THE PRECISION OR
POSITIONAL ACCURACY AS CALCULATED IS 1:10,000+, THAT THIS
SURVEY WAS PREPARED USING INFORMATION GATHERED WITH
GPS AND THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION WAS USED:
CLASS OF SURVEY:  CLASS A
POSITIONAL ACCURACY: +/-0.05'
TYPE OF GPS PROCEDURE: RTK
DATES OF SURVEY: 6-13-23
DATUM: NAD83 (2011)
FIXED CONTROL: NCVRS SYSTEM
GEOID: GEOID 2018
COMBINED GRID FACTOR: AS NOTED
UNITS: US SURVEY FEET
THAT THE AREA OF THE NEW EASEMENT WAS CALCULATED BY
THE DMD METHOD.
THAT THIS PLAT MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE
STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR LAND SURVEYING IN NORTH
CAROLINA (21 NCAC 56.1600), AND THAT THIS PLAT WAS
PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH G.S. 47-30 AS AMENDED,
WITNESS MY HAND AND SEAL THIS 10TH DAY OF JULY, 2023.
I, MICHAEL E. REED, CERTIFY THAT THIS SURVEY IS OF AN
EXISTING PARCEL OR PARCELS OF LAND OR ONE OR MORE
EXISTING EASEMENTS AND DOES NOT CREATE A NEW STREET
OR CHANGE AN EXISTING STREET.

_____________________________________________________
PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR                            L-4445

REFERENCES:
DEED BOOK 1892, PAGE 813
PLAT CABINET L, SLIDE 70-I

PLAT CABINET O, SLIDE 39-H
PLAT CABINET P, SLIDE 47-E

NOTES:
1.  EXISTING EASEMENTS CAN BE

FOUND ON PLAT CABINET P,
SLIDE 47-E

2.  NCDOT EASEMENT
REFERENCE INFORMATION
TAKEN FROM PROJECT U-4753

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SCALE: 1"=60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRE HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLEAN OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON STAKE FOUND or NAIL SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
OR PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUSH

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE TV LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DITCH or SWALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAILROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
YARD INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-4445

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A



J



















STIP U‐4753 Project Overview

• Currently in R‐O‐W acquisition
• Widen to four lanes from W. New Hope to Hwy 70 Bypass is 3/4 mile
• Road widening and extensive utility relocation on West New Hope 

adjacent to future hotel running southwest past George Wood Drive
• Is roughly a 10‐million‐dollar project 
• Estimated 8.5 million construction 1.5 ROW cost
• Construction scheduled to begin in 2025



To be replaced

£¤US
70

WOODSIDE 

DR

WINDSOR
CREEK

PKWY

HARRIS
CT

LI
LA

C
PL

WOODROSE
DR

WILSHIRE

W
AY

M
AR

YB
ET

H
PL

W
ES

CO
TT

PL

HUNTING
TO

N

PL

VE
RA

AV

CASSEDALE PL

WELFORD PL

VE
RONIC

A 
AV

SHADYW
OOD 

DR

CO
A

C
H

M
ANS

PL

TI
FF

AN
Y 

RD

TOMMYS 

RD

AMBLEWOOD
LN

W
AY

NE

MEM
ORIA

L

DR

BEV
ER

LY
DR

CASSEDALE
DR

BECTO
N LN

E

US 70
BYP

HA
RE

 

RD

W

NEW
HOPE

RD

BEST AV



R‐O‐W Offer to Purchase Tract A near hotel
• Parcel Number 3610446826 

• Planned future restaurant site

• Impact to property is negligible 

• Future propose use not impacted

• Improved due to turning lane?

• Plans call for rebuild of walking path

• Total tract currently   2.8 acres

• Needed for ROW  .3

• Remaining  2.5 acres

• DOT Offer $161,650 (Tract A)



!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!!

!
!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!
!!

!
!!

!
!!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

To be replaced

W
AY

NE
 M

EM
ORI

AL
 D

R

W NEW HOPE RD

1331

1332

3205

3120

3130

203

3130 Z



Site Pictures Tract A



To be replaced

W NEW HOPE RD



Site Pictures Tract B Greenway Trail R‐O‐W



! ! !

! ! !

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!
!

To be replaced

W
AY

NE
 M

EM
ORI

AL
 D

R

W NEW HOPE RD

1332

1301

3114

3201

3120



R‐O‐W Details (B)

• Parcel Number 3610546722 

• Consists of ROW for walking trail

• Impact to property is negligible 
• Future propose use is not impacted
• Plans call for rebuild of walking path

• Needed for ROW (B)     .740 acres
• Land  $56,850
• Improvements $18,475

• DOT Offer $75,325   (Tract B) 

$161,650 (Tract A)

• Total offer  $236,975



The End

• Questions, Comments, Concerns



K



RESOLUTION NO. 2023- 57

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CITY FISCAL POLICY GUIDELINES

WHEREAS, the City Fiscal Policy Guidelines were adopted April 19, 2010, revised
February 15, 2012, updated July 17, 2023, and revised August 21, 2023; and

WHEREAS, policy revisions are as follows: General Fund ( GF) available fund balance
target equal to 15%, revised to unassigned fund balance equal to at least 15%; Utility Fund
UF) reserve target goal of 50% of expenditures, revised to cash and investments equal to at

least 50% of expenditures and at no time shall cash and investments fall below 30% of OF

operating expenditures without Council approval; a bond rating policy was added to maintain a
very strong/ high bond rating to be considered a " low-risk" borrower when obtaining funding
for projects. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City
of Goldsboro, North Carolina that the City Fiscal Policy Guidelines are hereby approved and
effective as of this date. 

This Resolution shall be incorporated into the official Minutes of the City of Goldsboro, and
shall be in full force and effect from and after this

21St

day of August, 2023. 

Attested by: 

Laura Getz, City Cler



 Subject: Fiscal Policy Guidelines Department: City Manager’s Office 
Policy #: Adopted: 

08/21/2023 
Effective: 
08/21/2023 

Supersedes: 
02/15/2012 

Resolution #: 
NA 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-004 

 

Page 1 of 4 
 

FISCAL POLICY GUIDELINES - OBJECTIVES  
This fiscal policy is a statement of the guidelines and goals that will influence and guide the financial management 
practice of the City of Goldsboro, North Carolina.  A fiscal policy that is adopted, adhered to, and regularly reviewed is 
recognized as the cornerstone of sound financial management.  Effective fiscal policy:  
  

• Contributes significantly to the City's ability to insulate itself from fiscal crisis,  
 

• Enhances short term and long-term financial credit ability by helping to achieve the highest credit and bond 
ratings possible,  

 
• Promotes long-term financial stability by establishing clear and consistent guidelines,  

 
• Directs attention to the total financial picture of the City rather than single issue areas,  

 
• Promotes the view of linking long-run financial planning with day-to-day operations, and  

 
• Provides the City Council, citizens, and the City’s professional management a framework for measuring the fiscal 

impact of government services against established fiscal parameters and guidelines.  
  
To these ends, the following fiscal policy statements are presented.  
 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET POLICIES  
The City will prioritize all capital improvements in accordance with an adopted capital improvement plan (CIP).  

 
1. The City will develop a 10-year plan for capital improvements and review and update the plan annually.  

Additional projects can be added to the CIP at any time, but funding for projects added in this manner are subject 
to normal operating budget constraints.  
 

2. The City will coordinate development of the CIP with development of the operating budget.  
 

3. The City will maintain all its assets at a level adequate to protect the City's capital investment and to minimize 
future maintenance and replacement costs.  
 

4. The City will identify the estimated costs and potential funding sources for each capital project proposal before it 
is submitted for approval.  
 

5. The City will attempt to determine the least costly and most flexible financing method for all new projects. 
 

DEBT POLICIES  
General  
1. The City will confine long-term borrowing to capital improvements or projects that cannot be financed from 

current revenues except where approved justification is provided.  



 Subject: Fiscal Policy Guidelines Department: City Manager’s Office 
Policy #: Adopted: 

08/21/2023 
Effective: 
08/21/2023 

Supersedes: 
02/15/2012 

Resolution #: 
NA 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-004 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

2. The City will utilize a balanced approach to capital funding utilizing debt financing, draws on capital reserves 
and/or fund balances in excess of policy targets, and current-year (pay-as-you-go) appropriations.  
 

3. When the City finances capital improvements or other projects by issuing bonds or entering into capital leases, it 
will repay the debt within a period not to exceed the expected useful life of the project.  Target debt ratios will be 
calculated annually and included in the review of financial trends.  
 

4. Where feasible, the City will explore the usage of special assessment, revenue, or other self-supporting bonds 
instead of general obligation bonds.  
 

5. The City will retire tax anticipation debt, if any, annually and will retire bond anticipation debt within six months 
after completion of the project.  

  
Tax Supported Debt   
6. Direct net debt as a percentage of the total assessed value of taxable property should not exceed 2.5%.  Direct net 

debt is defined as City-issued debt that is tax supported.  
 
7. The ratio of direct net debt service expenditures as a percent of total governmental fund expenditures should not 

exceed 15% with an aggregate ten-year principal payout ratio target of 55% or better.    
 

8. The City recognizes the importance of underlying and overlapping debt in analyzing financial condition.  The 
City will regularly analyze total indebtedness including underlying and overlapping debt.  
 

9. The City will target a minimum amount of equity funding of 10% of the CIP on a five-year rolling average.  
  
Self-Supported Debt  
10. The City will target a minimum amount of equity funding in the Water and Sewer Fund of 15% of the capital 

improvement plan on a five-year rolling average.  
 

11. The City will strive to maintain a Debt Service Coverage Ratio in the Water and Sewer Fund at a minimum of 
1.25x. 

 
RESERVE POLICIES  
The City of Goldsboro will strive to maintain the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund at a level sufficient to meet 
its objectives.  The City will target an unassigned fund balance at the close of each fiscal year equal to at least 15% of 
General Fund operating expenditures and transfers out; at no time shall the unassigned fund balance fall below 10% of 
General Fund operating expenditures and transfers out without Council approval.  
 
1. The City Council may, from time-to-time, appropriate fund balances that will reduce unassigned fund balances 

below the 10% policy for the purposes of a declared fiscal emergency or other such global purpose as to protect the 
long-term fiscal security of the City of Goldsboro.  In such circumstances, the Council will adopt a plan to restore 
the unassigned fund balances to the policy level within 36 months from the date of the appropriation.  If restoration 



 Subject: Fiscal Policy Guidelines Department: City Manager’s Office 
Policy #: Adopted: 

08/21/2023 
Effective: 
08/21/2023 

Supersedes: 
02/15/2012 

Resolution #: 
NA 

Approved by: 
City Council CMOP-004 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

cannot be accomplished within such time period without severe hardship to the City, then the Council will 
establish a different but appropriate time period.  

 
2. The City has adopted a comprehensive strategy for the long-term stability and financial health of the Utility Fund. 

The City of Goldsboro will strive to maintain Utility Fund cash and investments at the close of each fiscal year 
equal to at least 50% of the Utility Fund operating expenditures; at no time shall cash and investments fall below 
30% of Utility Fund operating expenditures without Council approval.  

 
3. The City Council may, from time-to-time, appropriate Utility Fund cash and investments below the 30% policy for 

the purposes of a declared fiscal emergency or other such global purpose as to protect the long-term fiscal security 
of the City of Goldsboro. In such circumstances, the Council will adopt a plan to restore cash and investments to 
the policy level within 36 months from the date of the appropriation. If restoration cannot be accomplished within 
such time period without severe hardship to the City, then the Council will establish a different but appropriate 
time period. 

 
BOND RATING POLICY. The City will maintain a very strong/high bond rating to be considered a “low-risk” 
borrower when obtaining funding for projects. The City will target the Standard and Poor’s AA+/Moody’s Aa1 rating; at 
no time shall the rating drop below AA/Aa2 without Council notification. In such circumstances, the Council will adopt a 
plan to restore the bond rating to the policy level within 36 months from the date of the lower or lost bond rating. If 
restoration cannot be accomplished within such time period without severe hardship to the City, then Council will 
establish a different but appropriate time period.   
 
BUDGET DEVELOPMENT POLICIES   
1. The City will develop its annual budgets in such a manner so as to incorporate historic trend analysis for revenues 

and expenditures with an adjustment for current financial trends and developments as appropriate.    
 

2. Utility rates will be established at the appropriate level to enable the related funds to be self-supporting.   
 

3. One-time or other special revenues will not be used to finance continuing City operations but instead will be used 
for funding special projects.  

 
4. The City will pursue an aggressive policy seeking the collection of delinquent utility, license, permit and other fees 

due to the City.  
 
5. The City Council will receive a financial report at the end of each quarter showing year-to-date revenues and 

expenditures.  
 

6. Budget amendments will be brought to City Council for consideration as needed. 
 
 
 
 
 





City of Goldsboro  
Departmental Monthly Reports 

July 2023 

1. Community Relations
2. Downtown Development
3. Engineering
4. Finance
5. Fire
6. Human Resources
7. Information Technology
8. Inspections
9. Paramount Theater

10. Parks and Recreation-GEC
11. Planning
12. Police
13. Public Utilities
14. Public Works
15. Travel and Tourism

Item L



 

1 
 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
July 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Development & Relations Director 
Date Prepared:  August 11, 2023 
 
• The Commission on Community Relations and Development (CCRD) met for a regular monthly meeting on July 11th. 

The MLK Subcommittee met on July 28th. 
• The Mayor’s Committee for Persons with Disabilities (MCPD) resumed meeting on July 20th. 

 
• Community Relations Activities:  

1. Staff conducted two Lead for NC Fellow interviews on July 2nd.  
2. Staff attended the monthly Executive Board meeting of CALM on July 18th.  
3. Staff engaged in 3 department staff meetings in July. 
 

• Community Development Activities:  
1. Staff attended a Special Choice Neighborhood/Council meeting on July 6th.  
2. Staff facilitated a meeting with City Attorney on July 11th.   
3. Staff attended Choice Neighborhood Planning meetings on July 13th & 19th.  
4. Staff attended Region 10 Continuum of Care (CoC) monthly meeting on July 12thand Region 10 Coordinated 

Entry weekly case conference meetings on July 12th & 19th.    
5. Staff conducted a HUD Housing Quality Standards property Inspection for Homebuyer Assistance Approved 

Applicant on July 12th.  
6. Staff attended a Development meeting with Habitat & Planning on July 20th.   
7. Staff engaged with HUD for an onsite HOME Monitoring of FY17 & FY19 HOME funded activities on July 24th- 

July 28th.    
8. Staff engaged in 3 virtual consultations with HUD for the month of July. 

     
• The Department received two (2) housing complaints and thirty-two (32) requests for assistance for the month of 

July. *Please refer to Community Relations & Development Addendum for a detailed summary.   
2023 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 1 1 1 1 4 0 2      2 
Consumer/Other 
Requests 

27 36 14 15 19 25 32      28 

 
2022 Complaints Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec AVG 

Housing Complaints 3 0 0 0 3 1 1 0 1 0 0 1 3 
Consumer & Other 
Requests 

24 36 25 141 69 43 27 32 27 19 20 20 40 

 



 

 
 

1 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT Addendum 
July 2023 
Prepared by:  Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director 
Date Prepared:  August 11, 2023 
 
Complaints/Grievances 
Nature of Complaint               Resolution 

Housing – Water 
Pressure & 
Discoloration Issue 
*Cuyler Spring 
Apartments 

Complaint Filed – 
Resolution ongoing 
(Consulted Public 
Works, Property 
Manager, Public 
Utilities) 

Housing – Issues with 
toilet not flushing 

Consulted HACG who 
resolved; Consulted 
4Day Movement who 
provided temporary 
lodging 

 
Assistance with Resources 
 Resource Requested            Number of Requests  Resolution 

Home Repair 13 Application provided /Application follow-up provided 
First-Time Homebuyer 
 

4 Provided program information and/or update on submitted 
application  

Rental assistance 3 Provided Community Resources Listing 
Seeking Low-income 
Rental Housing 

1 Referred to current LMI Rental Properties in the city 

City Property Purchase 
Inquiry 

1 Notified caller that HUD funds previously assisted the property and 
shared regulatory requirements for property 

Summer Youth 
Employment 

1 Could not reach when call returned 

Seeking Housing 3 Provided Community Resources Listing & Referred to 4Day 
Movement 

Financial Assistance 
(Electric, Funding a 
school, Appeal Eviction) 

3 Provided Community Resources Listing 

GYC Application Inquiry 2 Advised on application procedures 
Tree issue in Yard 1 Referred to Public Works 
Total Requests: 32  

 



1 

Downtown Development Department 
July 2023 Monthly Report 
Prepared By: Erin Fonseca 
Date Prepared: August 14, 2023 
 Current Downtown Development Office Projects Staff Worked On Over the Month Include:  

• Met with (or conversed by email/phone) 15 potential new property acquisition projects/persons and/or 
business interest regarding downtown. Met with 17 existing business owners.  

• Social District preparation – Update presented during the July 17 Council meeting. Vote postponed to August. 
• South Center Street Development planning. Intent to advertise RFQ in July/August. 
• Union Station discussions regarding stabilization, fair market value and potential reuse. Appraisal was delivered 

in March. Exploring grant opportunities to ease the cost of rehabilitation. 
• NC Main Street Annual Statistics completed July 31.  
• NC Main Street conference prep and inventory of downtown maintenance needs.  
• Parking Commission discussions.  
• Merchant/Property Information Mgmt – Integrating to new website.  
• Staff continuing to work with Choice Neighborhoods Team, attending bi-weekly calls. Attended two visioning 

sessions.  
Downtown Development Office Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:           

• Staff is meeting with NC Main Street staff monthly re: 2024 NC Main Street Conference, March 12-14. 

• Mural wall primed with ARPA arts grant. Preparing to apply for a grassroots grant to complete the mural wall in 
the fall.   

• Staff hosted the Public Art Steering selection process and narrowed selections for 13 for public input. Feedback 
concludes July 12; pieces will be installed September 22.  

• Staff is preparing nominations for the 2022-23 Annual Downtown Awards. Awards Dinner will be held on Oct 13. 

• Other Meetings: Chamber of Commerce Board Meeting, Social District Discussions, NCFF Board and 
Planning Mtgs, Transformation Grant Discussion, TRC with Planning 

DGDC Events or Activities that Staff Administered or Assisted During the Month:  
• DGDC Merchants on July 11, Design, Economic Vitality and Promotions Committees on July 11, Executive 

Committee on July 12 and DGDC Board of Directors on July 19.   
• Center Street Jam – every other Thursday, May 4 - August 10 
• Sprinkler Fun Days – June 8 – August 17 
• Downtown Annual Awards Dinner preparations 
• Staff is supporting NCFF team with planning and preparation.  

Upcoming Events/Activities:  
• HUB Events: Center Street Jam,  Choice Neighborhoods Community Event-  July 8, International Overdose 

Awareness Event – Aug 31, Taste of Wayne – Sept 7, Freedom Friday – Sept 8, NC Freedom Fest – Sept 9 
Businesses Opening/Properties Purchased & Other Updates 

• New Businesses: Stacey’s Sugaring & Skin Care; Arts Council opened new location at 139 W Walnut 
• Coming Soon, Labrar to reopen in September; The Firm at 156 S. Center;  Spice Bouquet - 112 E Mulberry; WOLF 

Unlimited – 138 N Center; Owl-amo Pool Hall – 122 S Center; Lola’s Vintique – 154 S Center; Brick’s Woodfired 
Pizza 

• Downtown Goldsboro’s Facebook page followers: 15K; 20.5K reach  



 

 
 

1 

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 
July 2023 
Prepared by:  Bobby Croom, P. E.                     
Date Prepared:  08-10-23 
                
Stoney Creek Greenway   

• The greenway extends from Royall Avenue to Quail Park along Stoney Creek, approximately 1,600 
linear feet; 

• This project is 99% complete; 
• Waiting on final payment and project close out. 

 
Phase IV Sewer Collection Rehabilitation 

• Staff is working with DWI to close out this project. 
 
Mount Olive Pickle Expansion 

• Phase 1 has been completed and Mount Olive Pickle is in operation; 
• Phase 2, River Bend Pump Station, is under construction and will take approximately a year to 

complete. 
 
Stormwater Control Measure (SCMs) Inspections   

• Approximately 308 SCMs have been approved and 258 SCMs have been constructed to date; 
• Stormwater Control Measure Inspections are completed for July 2023. 

 
Wayne County Utility Merger/Regionalization Feasibility 

• Final scope of engineering services has been approved by DWI;  
• CDM Smith continues to work on the final report and to facilitate meetings with all interested parties 

in Wayne County. 
 
Stormwater Inventory Project 

• Projected completion October 2023. 
 

2” Galvanized Water Line Project 
• NCDWI awarded the City a grant for the project in the amount of $5,999,395; 
• Offer and acceptance documentation was submitted by staff in September 2022; 
• Staff is working on the design phase of this project. 

 
Lead and Copper Inventory 

• Staff is coordinating the information required by EPA for lead and copper inventories; 
• Project is scheduled to open bids on August 31, 2023. 

. 
SJAFB MAG Meter 

• This project is in the design phase; 
• Staff working with on-call engineers to obtain pricing for task order. 



2 

 
NCSU Floodprint Project 

• Staff is working with NCSU on potential project applications for Fall 2023. 
 
2023 Resurfacing Project 

• Staff is preparing bid documents;  
• Project is scheduled to open bids on August 31, 2023. 



 

 
 

1 

FINANCE   
JULY 2023 
Prepared By: Andrea Lovelace 
Date Prepared: August 14, 2023 

 

FY 21-22
Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

Revenues June-22 Adjusted Budget June-23 Collected
General Fund 48,536,582$    46,793,187$        43,672,214$    93.33%
Utility Fund 20,090,612      24,909,666          24,013,838      96.40%
Downtown District Fund 98,010             117,019               105,744           90.37%
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,116,324        1,211,098            1,242,702        102.61%
Stormwater Fund 1,899,115        2,248,123            2,035,847        90.56%
     Total 71,740,644$    75,279,092$        71,070,344$    94.41%

Expenditures
General Fund 38,240,778$    46,793,187$        42,453,362$    90.73%
Utility Fund 14,609,687      24,909,666 17,461,341 70.10%
Downtown District Fund 69,354             117,019 86,056             73.54%
Occupancy Tax Fund 1,103,615        1,211,098 1,174,653 96.99%
Stormwater Fund 1,890,493        2,248,123 1,902,455 84.62%
     Total 55,913,927$    75,279,092$        63,077,867$    83.79%

FY 21-22
Revenues Actual to Date Actual to Date YTD %

June-22 Adjusted Budget June-23 Collected
Property/Occupancy Taxes 19,215,094$    19,281,704$        19,531,999$    101.30%
Charges for Services 25,944,802      30,095,807          28,607,065      95.05%
Revenue Other Agencies 17,597,615      16,800,402          14,458,885      86.06%
Other Revenues 5,775,293        3,757,881            5,143,399        136.87%
Fund Balance -                   2,014,301            -                   0.00%
Shared Services 3,207,840        3,328,996            3,328,996        100.00%
     Total 71,740,644$    75,279,092$        71,070,344$    94.41%

Expenditures
Labor 25,706,322$    29,733,052$        30,609,229$    102.95%
Non-Labor 30,207,604      45,546,040          32,468,638      71.29%
     Total 55,913,927$    75,279,092$        63,077,867$    83.79%

FY 21-22 Actual Total 
Collections Actual June-23 Collected F-YTD

Debt Setoff 27,778$           2,268$                  46,249$           
Surplus 154,548$         77,634$               81,510$           

FY 22-23

MAJOR CATEGORIES
FY 22-23

SELECTED OTHER INFORMATION



Prepared Date: 8/4/23 7:40 AM
Prepared By: Terrie Webber
Reviewed Date: 8/13/23 9:08 PM
Reviewed By: Catherine F. Gwynn

Current Month Prior Month Prior Year
Financial Institution 7/31/2023 6/30/2023 7/31/2022 Rate of Return

PNC - General Operating 2,129,040.46$              2,655,738.12$              1,416,850.75$              0.00%
PNC - Money Market 6,104,093.07$              8,084,987.99$              7,433,064.28$              3.09%
PNC - Debit Account 2,000.00$                      2,000.00$                      1,000.00$                      0.00%
Southern Bank - CD 625,599.52$                 624,873.05$                 15,092,358.00$            1.52%
NCCMT - MM - 2010 Sewer Bond D#001 260,613.35$                 259,499.69$                 250,433.66$                 n/a
NCCMT - MM - American Rescue Plan 2021 9,182,949.69$              9,143,708.97$              4,419,496.14$              n/a
NCCMT - MM - Regular 4,558,784.25$              4,539,303.54$              4,380,703.82$              n/a
Truist MMA 25,002,610.73$            24,936,358.96$            -$                                3.25%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY21 & FY22 Rolling Stock -$                                414,249.13$                 0.01%
Truist (BB&T) - Escrow FY23 Rolling Stock 2,380,304.32$              2,380,284.10$              -$                                0.01%
Webster (Sterling National Bank) - Escrow 340,250.00$                 340,182.27$                 1,868,836.26$              0.25%
Totals 50,586,245.39$          52,966,936.69$          35,276,992.04$          

Monthly Cash & Investment Report
July 31, 2023

Cash & Investment FY2024.xlsx 7-31-23 8/13/2023 9:09 PM



Grant Project Budgets Monthly Report -July 2023
Prepared: tlw 8/8/2023 7:47 AM
Red Font-Not formally accepted by Council at this time.
Reviewed: cfg 8/13/2023 9:29 PM

Granting 
Agency Granting Agency (Full) Grant Description

Source 
(Full) S Date Received

 Grant Portion 
Budget Amount  Budget Total 

 Current 
Amount Rec'd  

 Amount Rec'd  
Project to Date 

 Current 
Amount Spent  

 Amount Spent 
to Project to 

Date 

 Positive 
(Negative) Cash 

Flow Fund
HUD HOME FY16-17 Entitlement Federal F 22,201$                     22,201$                  -$                   22,201$             -$                   22,201$             -$                   C3101
HUD HOME FY17-18 Entitlement Federal F 73,557$                     73,557$                  -$                   67,480$             -$                   67,995$             (515)$                 C3101
HUD CDBG FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 19,523$                     19,523$                  -$                   19,523$             -$                   19,523$             -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY18-19 Entitlement Federal F 22,910$                     22,910$                  -$                   22,910$             -$                   22,910$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 353,346$                   353,346$                -$                   216,456$          -$                   216,456$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY19-20 Entitlement Federal F 8/27/2019 214,732$                   214,732$                -$                   49,554$             -$                   49,554$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 351,643$                   351,643$                -$                   170,649$          -$                   170,649$          -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY20-21 Entitlement Federal F 10/7/2020 245,547$                   245,547$                -$                   28,472$             -$                   28,472$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG FY20-21 Entitlement CV Funding (Round 2 & 3) Federal F 10/7/2020 427,303$                   427,303$                -$                   133,792$          -$                   133,792$          -$                   C2102
HUD CDBG FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 354,302$                   354,302$                -$                   87,559$             -$                   87,559$             (0)$                     C2101
HUD HOME FY21-22 Entitlement Federal F 252,710$                   252,710$                -$                   32,592$             -$                   32,592$             0$                      C3101
HUD CDBG FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 358,697$                   358,697$                -$                   25,149$             -$                   25,149$             -$                   C2101
HUD HOME FY22-23 Entitlement Federal F 280,171$                   280,171$                -$                   27,467$             -$                   27,467$             -$                   C3101
HUD CDBG ARP Funding (M21-MP370209) Federal F 907,913$                   907,913$                -$                   36,436$             -$                   36,436$             -$                   C3102

NCHFA NCHFA URP-19 Urgent Repair State S 4/18/2019 100,000$                   100,000$                -$                   96,570$             -$                   96,570$             -$                   C2101
NCHFA NCHFA ESFRLP ESFRLP Rehabilitation Loan Pool State S 1/24/2017 150,000$                   150,000$                -$                   117,975$          -$                   117,975$          -$                   22
FEMA FEMA Hurricane Florence Federal F 6/1/2019 2,340,773$               4,604,077$             -$                   4,982,838$       -$                   4,179,246$       803,592$          R1102
DOJ Dept. of Justice Federal Forfeiture Federal F Ongoing 274,138$                   274,138$                1,338$               275,476$          -$                   106,537$          168,939$          P3101
DOJ NC Dept of Justice/US DOJ 2017 GPD Gang Equipment Grant Federal S 1/3/2019 21,366$                     21,366$                  -$                   18,408$             -$                   18,408$             0$                      P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2019 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/25/2019 47,003$                     47,003$                  -$                   42,435$             -$                   42,435$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2020 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 9/19/2020 34,766$                     34,766$                  -$                   30,381$             -$                   30,381$             -$                   P3102
DOJ Dept. of Justice FY20 CRF Equipment Grant Federal F 6/8/2020 87,179$                     87,179$                  -$                   87,179$             -$                   87,179$             (0)$                     P3106
DOJ Dept. of Justice 2022 JAG Equipment Grant Federal F 12/19/2022 23,574$                     23,574$                  2,045$               16,413$             20$                    16,433$             (20)$                   P3102
FTA Federal Transportation Admin. FY2016 TIGER VIII Center Street & Streetscape Federal F 10/1/2018 6,751,751$               7,189,383$             -$                   7,385,809$       -$                   6,527,315$       858,494$          R1103

FEMA FEMA GO FEMA GO-Source Capture Exhaust Systems FS 1, 2, 3, 5Federal F 7/24/2020 202,083$                   202,083$                -$                   202,083$          -$                   202,083$          -$                   R1104
UST/Wayne Co US Treasury-Wayne Co. CARES Act Funding Federal F 9/9/2020 966,688$                   966,688$                -$                   966,688$          -$                   966,688$          (0)$                     R1105

NC Tourism NC Tourism Recovery Grant CARES Act Funding - Marketing Travel & Tourism Federal F 10/6/2020 25,750$                     25,750$                  -$                   25,750$             -$                   25,750$             -$                   R1106
Triangle YMCA Triangle YMCA Remote Learning Grant Parks & Recreation Federal F 11/18/2020 19,681$                     19,681$                  -$                   19,681$             -$                   19,681$             -$                   R1106

UST US Treasury ARP Funding Federal F 3/11/2021 8,813,514$               8,813,514$             39,241$             9,182,950$       -$                   5,279,797$       3,903,153$       R1107
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Phase IV Sewer Rehab Federal F 11/26/2019 8,905,676$               9,083,790$             -$                   4,851,571$       -$                   8,519,172$       (3,667,601)$      S1102
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Sewer Rehab (Big Ditch & Carolina) Federal F 3/24/2021 1,235,100$               1,259,802$             -$                   639,892$          -$                   730,989$          (91,097)$           S1103

Debt Debt Funded 2010 Sewer GO Bonds D#001-E Debt D 2010 8,605,000$               8,684,163$             1,114$               489,662$          -$                   466,382$          23,280$             S1104
Goldenleaf Goldenleaf Foundation Hurr. Matthew Recovery Stormwater Drain. & Swr. RehabPrivate P 10/11/2017 598,574$                   598,574$                -$                   598,574$          -$                   598,574$          (0)$                     S1105
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR Little Cherry Big Cherry Pump Station Relocation Federal F Not Accepted Yet 3,058,000$               30,000$                  -$                   30,000$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   S1106

DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR (AIA) Project AIA-D-VUR-0004 & AIA-W-VUR-0004State S 1/24/2022 300,000$                   304,500$                -$                   4,500$               -$                   302,300$          (297,800)$         S1107
DWI NC Dept of Env. Quality DWI VUR MRF Project MRF-M-VUR-0001 State S 1/24/2022 100,000$                   101,500$                -$                   1,500$               -$                   33,526$             (32,026)$           S1108

SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Waterline Repl. & Booster Pump Station Install.Federal F 6/6/2019 32,400$                     265,513$                -$                   233,113$          -$                   265,513$          (32,400)$           W1111
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-Plate Settlers Project Federal F 3/7/2021 1,484,909$               1,484,909$             -$                   1,519,536$       -$                   1,517,550$       1,986$               W1112
SRF/DWI EPA/NCDENR CWSRF-2" Galvanized Water Line Replacement Federal F Not Accepted Yet 5,999,395$               6,029,395$             -$                   30,000$             -$                   25,000$             5,000$               W1113

Debt Debt Funded Herman Park Center Debt D Not Issued yet 11,150,000$             11,150,000$           -$                   -$                   -$                   376,000$          (376,000)$         G1102
Donation Private Donations 1919 LaFrance Fire Truck Restoration Private P Ongoing 80,000$                     80,000$                  -$                   32,691$             -$                   -$                   32,691$             G1103

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Capital Project Fund FY19-FY24 Private P Ongoing 632,943$                   632,943$                -$                   557,943$          -$                   251,072$          306,871$          G1104
Debt Debt Funded 2018 Street Bonds (Debt #026-G) Debt D Ongoing 5,048,522$               5,048,522$             -$                   5,046,649$       -$                   4,980,164$       66,485$             G1105
Debt Debt Funded Police/Fire Renovation (Debt #025-G) Debt D Ongoing 6,417,326$               6,417,323$             396,000$          6,813,323$       -$                   6,259,362$       553,961$          G1106

Donation/Gr Private Donations and Grants Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 45,636$                     45,636$                  750$                  46,386$             166$                  42,284$             4,102$               G1107
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Community Relations Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 18,252$                     18,252$                  -$                   16,531$             -$                   14,477$             2,054$               G1108

NC OSBM NC Office State Mgmt & Budget State Grants Misc-OSBM FY23 St Approp State S 2/2/2023 50,000$                     50,000$                  349$                  50,603$             575$                  7,144$               43,459$             G1109
Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Police Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 62,183$                     62,182$                  2,550$               64,823$             -$                   19,487$             45,336$             P3104

City Fees Stormwater Fees Stormwater Drainage Projects City Fees C Ongoing 1,594,366$               1,594,366$             267,114$          1,861,258$       -$                   1,173,046$       688,212$          T2201
Debt Debt Funded Smeal Aerial Fire Truck Debt D 9/2022 1,151,600$               1,151,600$             -$                   1,136,500$       -$                   8,537$               1,127,963$       F3111

Donation/Gr Private Donations, Grants and City Fire Other Restricted Special Revenue Fund Private P Ongoing 4,050$                       4,050$                     1,205$               4,786$               -$                   66$                    4,720$               F3110

Total 80,316,753$             80,540,776$           711,706$          48,420,714$     761$                  44,277,876$     4,142,837$       

INFLOWS OUTFLOWS

Grant Source Legend:
F = Federal S= State D = Debt P = Private C = City Fees

Grants listed above represent awards that have been officially awarded by the Grantor, and officially accepted by the Grantee (City), unless 
noted in red font.  Those items in red, the Finance Department has received some formal award letter from the Grantor but the City has not formally
accepted the award.  The list above does not take into account grants that may have been applied for and the City may have received tentative award.  If I did
not have an official award, I did not place it on this list.

Notes:
* DWI still reviewing 30+ Change Orders on Ph IV SRF.  Will authorize reimbursements after DWI has concluded the review process.

Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-07 July_1.xlsx Grants 2023-07 July 8/13/2023 9:29 PM



Report of Budget Funds Transfers - July, 2023 through June, 2024

Department Department Head Account Name Transfers In Transfers Out
None for July 2022
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022
Transfers - ALL FUNDS - Jul 2022-Jul 2022

Budget Transfers
As per the Adopted Annual Budget Ordinance the Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to
reallocate departmental appropriations among the various objects of expenditures.      

The Budget Officer or his/her designee shall be authorized to effect interdepartmental transfers in the same 
fund not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the appropriated monies for the department whose allocation is 
reduced.  A report of all such transfers shall be made to the City Council in the month following such transfer.

Budget Transfers Summary FY24_1.xlsx Transfers Jul 8/13/2023 9:39 PM



Blue = Hide for final report

Account Fund Name Date From For Ck# Amount

P3104-0006-8230 Police-Other Restricted Funds 8/25/2022 Walmart Police Services 1,531.50$               

1,531.50$               

P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 10/7/2022 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 10/28/2022 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 11/19/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-8230 Police Other Restricted Funds 10/26/2022 Walmart Police Services 1542032 1,100.00$               
P3104-0006-8230 Police Other Restricted Funds 11/2/2022 Walmart Police Services 1551366 1,000.00$               
P3104-0006-8230 Police Other Restricted Funds 12/8/2022 Walmart Police Services 1598090 1,500.00$               

G1107-0006-8223 Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 12/1/2022 NCTA P & R 13452 4,000.00$               
7,750.00$               

11-0006-56101 Donations 12/6/2022 Anne H Scott Cemetery Maintenance 1052 900.00$                  

P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 1/4/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 120.00$                  
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 1/11/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 2/9/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 3/8/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    

G1107-0006-8223 Parks & Rec Special Revenue Fund 2/1/2023 Wayne Co United Soccer Club P & R 38393012 2,060.48$               

F3110-0006-56103A Fire Special Revenue Fund 11/21/2022 Walmart Fire Services 22-010867470 531.35$                  
F3110-0006-56103A Fire Special Revenue Fund 11/21/2022 Walmart Fire Services 22-002362566 500.00$                  
F3110-0006-56103A Fire Special Revenue Fund 11/21/2022 Walmart Fire Services 22-002362742 500.00$                  
F3110-0006-56103B Fire Special Revenue Fund 3/20/2023 E Smith DDS Fire Services (Summer Camp) 5047 500.00$                  
F3110-0006-56103B Fire Special Revenue Fund 2/22/2023 Haithcock, Barfield, Hulse & King PLLC Fire Services (Summer Camp) 47447 1,000.00$               
F3110-0006-56103B Fire Special Revenue Fund 3/27/2023 Bicycle World Fire Services (Summer Camp) 19557 100.00$                  

6,361.83$               

P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 4/12/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 5/17/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 50.00$                    
P3104-0006-56101 Police Other Restricted Funds 6/7/2023 Pat Pearce Police Services cash 90.00$                    

F3110-0006-56103B Fire Special Revenue Fund 5/6/2023 Seegars Fire Services (Summer Camp) 57276 250.00$                  
F3110-0006-56103B Fire Special Revenue Fund 6/2/2023 WPC Fire Services (Summer Camp) 5460 200.00$                  

640.00$                  
16,283.33$             

Donations Received Report

Quarter Ending 6/30/2023
Fiscal Year 2022-23 Totals

Fiscal Year to Date - Total Donations

FY22-23

Quarter 1 Ended 9/30/2022 - Total Donations

Quarter 2 Ended 12/31/2022 - Total Donations

Quarter 3 Ended 3/31/2023 - Total Donations

Quarter 4 Ended 6/30/2023 - Total Donations

Noncash Donation
One February 22, 2023 the Fire department received a 65" TLC TV from Ms. Tonya Sykes and Ms. Rachel Nash valued at $650.00

Donations FY22-23.xlsx FY22-23 8/13/2023 9:42 PM



FIRE DEPARTMENT  
July 2023 
Prepared By: Ron Stempien  
Date Prepared: August 10, 2023  
 

    

  The cause of fire incidents was determined 50% of the time. 50% of fire incidents were classified as 
undetermined or still under investigation.   
  

  The average response time of the first arriving unit was 5:04.   
  

  A full response within 8 minutes occurred 95% of all calls.   
  

  There were 0 Civilian injuries, 0 Civilian deaths, 1 Fire Service injury and 0 Fire Service deaths.   
  

  The American Red Cross assisted 0 families due to displacement because of fire damage.   
 

   Fire prevention and community service activities included: Car Seat Safety Checks with Safe Kids of Wayne 
County, Station Tours, Birthday Parades, Sprinkler Fun Days, The First Annual Health and Wellness 
Housing Fair Event, Choice Neighborhood Summer Extravaganza, Truck Displays, and Center Street Jam. 
We reached 114 Adults and 367 Children with fire prevention materials.  

 
 

 

Note: Other Fire Calls includes Good Intent Calls, Bomb Scares, Vehicle Fires, Cooking Fires, False Alarms, Assist GPD, Service Calls, Haz-Mat Calls, Grass 
Fires and Unauthorized Burning.  

    
1  

2023 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. July Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 277 222 229 262 263 277 389      274 1919 

Structure Fires: 2 3 7 4 4 4 4      4 28 

EMS Calls: 117 94 93 86 103 116 203      116 812 

Vehicle Accidents: 31 26 28 36 42 27 31      32 221 

Fire Alarms: 42 38 33 55 45 58 67      48 338 

Other: 85 61 68 81 69 72 84      74 520 

Training Hours: 3118 2873 3074 2218 2063 1777 1707      2404 16830 

Safety Car Seat Checks: 7 4 0 1 0 5 4      3 21 

Inspections: 115 116 155 149 110 88 105      120 838 

2022 Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr.  May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Oct. Nov. Dec. Avg. Total  
Total Incidents: 216 195 226 231 236 264 246 264 280 231 255 296 245 2490 
Structure Fires: 5 6 8 5 4 1 3 3 1  1 5 1 4 43 

EMS Calls: 79 78 80 92 83 86 99 124 103 73 79 82 88 1058 
Vehicle Accidents: 22 23 22 26 32 38 27 24 33 31 30 35 29 343 

Fire Alarms: 44 35 48 53 63 56 57 53 73 59 67 78 57 686 
Other: 66 53 68 54 54 83 60 60 70 68 74 100 67 811 

Training Hours: 2757 2806 2884 2260 1704 1715 1452 1700 1647 1835 1742 1214 1976 23716 
Safety Car Seat Checks: 0 0 4 3 5 2 5 3 2 5 1 2 3 32 

Inspections: 132 123 153 136 143 187 112 142 145 135 134 80 135 1622 



1 

HUMAN RESOURCES   
July 2023 
Date Prepared:  August 14, 2023 
 
 
Human Resources  
 

• Coordinated Occupational Health Nurse Interview Panel 
• Researching background check companies for competitive pricing 
• Researching SJAFB Skilled Bridge Program 
• Participated in Choice Neighborhood Community Engagement Event 
• Participated in Second Chance Employment & Resource Fair 
• Assisted with Public Works/Garage Interviews 
• Established standing medical orders for Immediate Care with Dr. Grant 
• Researching and preparing benchmarks for Police Department Salaries 
• Preparing for New Hire Orientation on August 16, 2023 
• Coordinating Hike to the Mountains – Presented by Wellness Committee 
• Preparing for Supervisors Training scheduled for August 1-3 
• Preparing for Pierce Insurance 2024 Open Enrollment for Supplemental Benefits for October 16 – 

27, 2023 
• Preparing for BCBS State Health Plan 2024 Open Enrollment scheduled for October 9 – 27, 2023 
• Preparing for American Red Cross Blood Drive in September 18, 2023 

 
Safety   
 

• July City Hall Fire and Defibrillator Inspections. 
• Investigated The Hub storage problems. 
• WRF safety check  
• Investigated an accident involving a solid waste vehicle. 
• Investigated an accident involving a Police Officer. 
• NC Prima Regional meeting on July 21 in Durham. 
• Visited crews on Leslie Street and Walnut Street doing water line construction. 
• Met with John Albert concerning needs for his division in the upcoming year. 
• Did field inspections check on crews during the Heat advisory. 
• Field Safety for private contractors 
• Field Safety with crews 

Occupational Health  
The Occupational Health Nurse continues to provide guidance regarding CDC guidelines and COVID 
protocols.  There were 104 clinic visits this month.  
 



2 

 

Health Training Sessions: 
• 5 routine BP checks 
• 18 Drug Screens 
• 2 Breath Alcohol test 
• 2 Audiograms performed  
• 1 Tetanus vaccine  
• 1 Hepatitis B vaccine 
• 1 Finger stick Blood sugar checks 
• Email to all employees: “Importance of Vitamin D” 
• CPR- Public Utilities -8 employees certified in CPR/ AED training (July 12th) 
• EAP pamphlets distributed at Police Department to all staff July 18th 
• Hearing Reviews @ Public Works – July 18th  
• TB skin test July 11th- Fire Dept C shift (13 employees) 
• Email sent July 28th  to all employees requesting particular topics they’d like discussed in monthly 

Health presentations by nurse 
 
Meetings: 

• Wellness Committee meeting – July 27th 
 

Other health-related information pertinent to employees include:  
• 1 employee COVID positive/Quarantined 
• 2 employees started FMLA  
• 8 Workplace injuries (4 were OSHA recordable) 
• 2 EAP referrals   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

DRUG SCREENS = 18 TOTAL 
New Hire CDL:  1 
New Hire non- CDL:  3 
Promotion CDL:  0 
Promotion non-CDL: 3 

Post-Accident DOT:  0 
 
Post-Accident Non- DOT:  0 

Instant Drug Screens:  3  
Random Safety Sensitive Drug Screen: 1 
Random Safety Sensitive Breath Alcohol Test: 0 

Random DOT Drug Screens:  7 
Random DOT Breath Alcohol Test: 1 



3 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

428 430 428 426 427 431 432      429 

Employees –            
Part Time 

92 89 91 94 110 121 125      103 

Total Employees 520 519 519 520 538 552 557      532 
Male  402 402 400 399 412 419 422      408 
Female 118 117 119 121 126 133 135      124 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

317 318 318 318 325 331 332      323 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

179 173 172 175 183 188 193      180 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

15 16 16 16 19 21 20      18 

Ethnicity – Asian 4 4 4 3 3 3 3      3 
Ethnicity – Other 7 7 8 8 8 9 9      8 
Vacancies  39 45 41 41 37 37 38      40 
Applications 137 389 354 320 185 138 363      269 

Applicant Notices 43 90 218 173 63 127 185      128 
New Hires  10 4 8 1 12 4 12      7 
Promotions 0 0 0 0 10 1 3      2 
Resignations 3 8 4 4 5 6 6      5 
Retirements  1 1 1 1 0 0 0      1 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

1 0 0 0 0 2 1 
 

     1 

Turnover Rate  1.2% 2.1% 1.2% 1.2% 1.2% 1.9% 1.4%      1.5% 
Vehicle Accidents 3 3 2 2 4 1 3      3 

Workers’ Comp 0 2 3 2 5 2 8      3 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

13 3 3 0 0 0 1      3 

Telework 13 14 14 14 14 14 14      14 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4 

MONTHLY STATISTICS 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Employees –               
FT & PPT 

423 427 418 417 420 427 424 422 427 427 423 431 424 

Employees –            
Part Time 

116 111 113 117 137 143 143 144 137 125 106 100 124 

Total Employees 539 536 531 534 557 570 567 566 564 552 529 531 548 
Male  411 412 409 411 420 428 426 425 429 417 404 408 417 
Female 128 124 122 123 137 142 141 141 135 135 125 123 131 
Ethnicity – White 
(Not Hisp or Latino) 

321 324 321 325 332 
 

340 339 338 334 324 316 321 328 

Ethnicity – Black or 
African American 

195 190 188 187 200 204 203 202 206 207 189 188 197 

Ethnicity – Hispanic 
or Latino 

18 17 17 17 19 19 18 18 16 16 15 16 17 

Ethnicity – Asian 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Ethnicity – Other 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 7 7 5 
Vacancies  24 25 30 31 31 33 26 36 34 35 35 27 31 
Applications 308 179 386 215 251 392 121 317 146 309 123 94 237 

Applicant Notices 141 147 90 90 230 173 92 97 476 126 69 43 148 
New Hires  6 4 9 9 7 9 7 7 7 4 4 6 7 
Promotions 3 0 4 4 3 3 0 2 6 8 6 2 3 
Resignations 6 10 9 9 3 8 8 6 7 5 3 3 6 
Retirements  2 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 0 2 5 2 
Terminations - 
Involuntary 

2 1 0 0 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Turnover Rate  2.4% 3.0% 2.6% 2.1% 1.0% 2.6% 2.4% 1.9% 2.1% 1.4% 1.4% 
 

2.1% 2.1% 

Vehicle Accidents 5 1 4 1 4 2 3 4 0 0 2 3 3 

Workers’ Comp 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 
FFCRA Leave/ 
Covid Related 

76 7 1 1 9 14 23 3 9 7 1 8 13 

Telework 11 11 11 11 11 12 13 13 13 13 13 13 12 
 
 
Note: Hiring and separation statistics (resignations, retirements, and terminations) represent full-time and permanent 
part-time personnel.  



 

 
 

1 

Information Technology  
July 2023 
Prepared By: Angela Price 
Date Prepared: August 5, 2023 
 
 

• Setup sculptures site for DGDC. 
• Replaced faulty memory in SAN. 
• Upgraded Video Servers for Security Cameras. 
• Installed TVs in Large Conference Room and at BMSC. 
• Resolved SCADA issues. 
• Replaced Printer and UPS at Compost. 
• Repaired issue with City Hall HVAC. 
• Installed Cameras at TC Coley and City Hall. 
• Upgrades computer setup for Vice. 
• Upgraded audio/video for Council Chambers and LCR. 
• Updated GETAC for GPD. 
• Replaced Cameras at GEC and City Hall.  
• Upgrades Web Server software. 
• Replaced Agitator PC at Compost. 

 
 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

825 719 842 692 730 689 710      744 5207 

Tickets 
Closed 

776 840 805 694 694 778 746      762 5335 

Open  
Tickets 

433 312 349 347 383 294 258      339  

 
 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG TOTAL 
               
Tickets 
Opened 

379 353 430 362 451 503 562 523 624 749 663 656 521 6,255 

Tickets 
Closed 

310 304 
 

466 398 392 540 464 548 590 686 689 795 515 6,182 

Open  
Tickets 

474 523 487 451 510 473 571 546 580 643 617 
 

478 529  

 
 



 

 
 

1 

INSPECTIONS 
July 2023 
Prepared By: Allen Anderson, Jr. 
Date Prepared 08/03/23 
 
The valuation of all permits issued for July totaled $36,509,307.  While Covid-19 is still a major concern for our 
local economy, development has taken an upward trend compared to the past several years. 
 
All permit fees collected for the month totaled $61,209.  Of the permit fees collected for the month, $4,275 was 
collected in technology fees.  Plan review fees collected during the month totaled $4,710. Business Registration fees 
collected totaled $3,940. 
 
The Inspectors did a total of 709 inspections for the month.  During the month of July, ten (10) business inspections 
were completed.  A total of 359 permits were issued for the month.    Seventy-five (75) plan reviews were 
completed for July. 
 
 
 
 

 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $7.7 $43.8 $23.8 $9.2 $10.4 $7.6 $36.5 $19.9
All Bldgs $ (M) $3.5 $42.1 $6.3 $5.0 $6.7 $5.3 $25.8 $13.5
Residential $ (K) $1.5M $652 $2.8M $2.6M $4.1M $2.9M $4.3M $2.7M
Misc $ (M) $4.2 $1.7 $17.5 $4.2 $3.7 $2.3 $10.7 $6.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $31 $40 $65 $39 $50 $35 $61 $46
Inspections 511 517 626 542 717 781 709 629
Permits Issued 287 413 347 414 333 348 359 357
Plan Reviews 49 35 49 53 83 58 75 57

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Avg
All Permit Valu. $ (M) $3.9 $11.1 $5.4 $6.7 $5.1 $9.6 $17.8 $6.5 $9.7 $10.7 $8.6 $5.6 $8.4
All Bldgs $ (M) $2.1 $9.1 $3.9 $5.0 $2.4 $7.6 $15.4 $3.3 $6.5 $9.4 $6.4 $2.3 $6.1
Residential $ (K) $813 $3M $472 $4.4M $341 $1.3M $0 $300 $3.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.1M $1.4M
Misc $ (M) $1.8 $2 $1.4 $1.7 $2.7 $2.0 $2.4 $3.2 $3.1 $1.3 $2.3 $3.3 $2.3
Permit Fee $ (K) $39 $43 $43 $35 $43 $41 $36 $48 $43 $42 $33 $29 $40
Inspections 460 551 654 614 584 730 531 661 621 587 836 512 612
Permits Issued 258 281 288 281 336 344 253 306 488 306 288 208 303
Plan Reviews 38 66 79 39 45 48 58 56 74 57 33 23 51



 

 
 

1 

 
PARAMOUNT 
July 2023 
Prepared by: Adam Twiss 
Date Prepared 8/14/2023 

 
 

--------------PARAMOUNT THEATRE-------------- 
 

• July activity included 17 rental/use days, including 5 public performances. 
o Notable Activity: 

 Norwayne Fundraiser Event 
 StageStruck 2-week camp residency with 4 public performances 

• July cancelled/rescheduled programming includes 6 days, 4 public performances 
• Repairs and Maintenance:  

 Façade Elements removed due to deterioration, to be reattached by TA Loving. 
 HVAC Controls upgrade budgeted and being coordinated with Piedmont. 
 Wheelchair lift – To be revisited in 2024. 
 Sound System repair and upgrade – Foundation to fund. 
 Roof repairs have held; interior ceiling stains and water damage to be repaired. 

 
 

--------------FINANCIAL-------------- 
 

 

Expenses: $25,165:   Labor: $23,157 / Operations: $858 /Artist and Renter box office Payout: $1,150 
Revenues: $15,366:   Tickets: -$13,284 / Building Rentals: -$495 / Concession: $1587  
 
  

   
 

 

Jul-23 Aug-23 Sep-23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 FY 24 Total Average

Exp $25,165 $25,165 $25,165

Rev $15,366 $15,366 $15,366

Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 FY 23 Total Average

Exp $47,039 $34,677 $52,943 $64,232 $38,325 $149,481 $63,274 $46,490 $66,591 $75,399 $100,423 $110,336 $849,210 $70,768

Rev -$867 $9,685 $27,448 $27,531 $54,098 $99,030 $49,176 $12,457 $67,200 $47,572 $77,666 $71,398 $542,394 $45,200



 
1 
 

Parks & Recreation/Golf Course/Goldsboro Event Center 
July 2023 
Prepared By: Stephanie Martin/Felicia Brown 
Date Prepared – 8/11/23 

 
• Our Bryan Multi-Sports Complex (MSCX) was used as a site for a soccer camp put on by North Carolina 

State University (NCSU) – 400 participants 
 

• Both Mina Weil Pool and Peacock Pool operated on their regular schedules in July – 2,500+ participants 
 

• Sensory Swim was offered on Tuesdays in July – 20 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Parks and Recreation (GPR) offered Group Swim Lessons in July for a fee - 23 participants 
 
• Goldsboro Event Center (GEC) hosted fifteen (15) events during July – 1,810 guests and four (4) City of 

Goldsboro events – 206 guests 
 

• Staff at the GEC had to turn away 27 patrons due to dates already being booked 
 

• Our Annual Tube the Neuse was held on July 15th – 101 participants 
 

• Goldsboro Golf Course hosted several tournaments this month including Wayne County Amateur –       
143 golfers and Seymour Johnson AFB Leagues – 30 golfers 
 

• Youth Karate Program at WA Foster Center in July – 116 participants  
 

• Attendance in our Youth and Adult Game Rooms at WA Foster Center – 356 visitors  
 

• Full-Day Camp for 7-12 year olds and Half-Day Camp for 5-6 year olds held at WA Foster Center – 200+ 
participants   
 

• Senior Card Group Play at TC Coley Community Center – 125 participants  
 

• Gym Open Play at WA Foster Center for Adults and Youth during July – 755 participants  
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to clean the park restrooms and the restrooms at the HUB daily 
 

• Park Maintenance Staff continue to tend to the landscaping on Center Street 
 

• As of July 2021, expenditures at all locations on the following report now reflect ALL STAFF associated 
with/assigned to that location – Full-time staff, Part-time staff, and Seasonal staff 

  



 

2023 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL 
A
U
G 

S
E
P 

OCT NOV DEC AVG 

Goldsboro Event Center                          
Rental Revenue $21,154 $17,487 $22,241 $18,705 $11,441 $11,359  $12,152           $16,363 
Facility Usage 1250 1975 1802 3225 2065   2165  2016           2071 
Expenditures $6,742 $8,122 $7,537 $6,475 $13,627 $17,384  $8,527           $9,773 
                            
W. A. Foster Recreation Center                         
Program Revenue $2,860 $2,977 $2,195 $1,170 $1,165 $14,570   $825           $3,680 
Rental Revenue $948 $1,827 $2,918 $1,088  $625 $308   $2,195           $1,416 
Facility Usage 2633 1632 2022 2651  2983 1546   2077           2221 
Expenditures $6,989 $12,076 $12,603 $11,993  $8,585 $26,741  $19,668           $14,094 
                            
T. C. Coley Community Center                         
Program Revenue $497 $1,130 $539 $280  $250 $167  $211           $439 
Rental Revenue $1,890 $720 $450 $450  $450 $1,015 $1,015           $856 
Facility Usage 197 73 170 193  210 154   177           168 
Expenditures  $1,874 $1,379 $2,203 $3,934  $6,644 $14,466  $6,706           $5,315 
                            
Specialized Recreation                         
Program Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $36   $18           $8 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $0  $0           $0 
Facility Usage 190 182 98 98  45  74  166           122 
Expenditures $7,618 $8,447 $6,350 $6,729  $7,462 $11,736  $8,627            $8,138 
                            
Senior Programs & Pools                         
Program Revenue $0 $185 $0 $140  $11 $4,082 $8,749            $1,881 
Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0  $0 $400  $875           $182 
Facility Usage 166 251 295 210  212 2383 2720            891 
Expenditures $3,749 $5,489 $4,688 $3,818  $5,927 $20,543 $21,611            $9,404 
                            
Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX                      
Program Revenue $65 $32,120 $23,050 $1,142 $5,780  $2,565  $45           $9,252 
Rental Revenue $6,136 $0 $85 $0  $900 $0  $0            $1,017 
Facility Usage 17550 19750 21900 22350  36285 21222  14380            21920 
Expenditures $4,917 $9,557 $10,461 $10,886 $10,456 $33,132 $7,678            $12,441 
                            
Golf Course                         

Revenues $37,930 $32,709 $55,850 $48,454 $56,560  $73,812  $61,821            $52,448 

Expenditures $63,976 $35,563 $52,218 $36,482 $53,315 $60,208 $31,528           $47,613 
Rounds of Golf 1200 1592 2788 1941  2309  2120 2110            2009 
Net -$26,046 -$2,854 $3,632 $11,972 $3,245  $13,603 $30,293            $4,835 
                            
Special Events                         
Revenues / Sponsorships $0 $2,000 $0 $0  $1,600 $1,730 $1,659           $998 
Participation 0 200 70 152  160 101   101           112 
Expenditures $18 $911 $511 $94  $3,170 $2,194 $1,551            $1,207 
                            
TOTAL REVENUE $71,480 $91,155 $107,328 $71,429 $78,782  $110,044  $89,565           $88,540 
TOTAL EXPENSES $95,883 $81,544 $96,571 $80,411 $109,186 $186,404  $105,896           $107,985 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $619,783          

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $755,895           



 

 
 

2022 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC AVG 
Herman Park Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $1,910 $520 $720 $978 $2,050 $27,880 $3,200 $1,190 $720 $1,710 $1,505 $990 $3,614 

Rental Revenue  $735 $1,475 $1,530 $2,350 $520 $1,366 $1,013 $1,895 $0 $0 $450 $450 $982 
Facility Usage 250 189 243 188 159 1475 470 224 286 468 390 292 386 
Expenditures $7,135 $5,287 $6,294 $6,126 $5,142 $8,344 $17,670 $8,333 $4,855 $5,048 $4,652 $4,485 $6,948 
               

WA Foster Recreation Center 
Program 
Revenue $895 $295 $505 $430 $2,453 $3,750 $1,475 $1,185 $1,108 $1,258 $563 $1,952 $1,322 

Rental Revenue $900 $2,820 $1,800 $3,058 $2,163 $1,653 $2,950 $1,025 998 $1,238 $513 $1,377 $1,625 
Facility Usage 1595 1565 1565 2051 1814 2495 2268 2814 1825 1719 1579 2325 1779 
Expenditures $18,218 $18,684 $16,911 $16,186 $12,952 $13,819 $29,738 $15,471 $8,798 $11,022 $9,556 $10,764 $15,177 
               

T.C. Coley Community Center 
Rental Revenue $518 $450 $518 $518 $880 $948 $525 $698 $855 $585 $585 $585 $639 
Expenses $1,848 $0 $0 $0 $80 $0 $100 $0 $0 $42 $0 $357 $202 
               

Specialized Recreation 
Program 
Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 0 $39 $0 $3 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 95 119 152 58 360 220 203 211 222 230 160 123 179 
Expenditures $5,865 $5,592 $5,921 $5,620 $4,039 $4,761 $6,253 $2,946 $2,064 $10,867 $11,985 $6,856 $6,064 
               

Senior Programs & Pools 
Program 
Revenue $105 $105 $105 $105 $1,807 $8,484 $4,936 $2,594 $190 $190 $462 $190 $1,606 

Rental Revenue $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 
Facility Usage 232 376 375 1013 1243 3492 3287 1870 268 256 194 271 1073 
Expenditures $1,027 $2,257 $1,874 $1,722 $2,437 $11,092 $37,817 $30,044 $13,284 $5,555 $3,114 $5,234 $9,621 
               

Athletics, Field & Picnic Shelters, Bryan MSCX 
Program 
Revenue $5,555 $16,145 $10,338 $3,319 $19,384 $2,790 $3,155 $27,200 $27,200 $2,990 $7,460 $1,362 $10,575 

Field / Shelter 
Rental $ $0 $0 $0 $150 $75 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $300 $44 

Facility Usage 10673 14935 23858 29346 44914 36785 11450 13125 13125 23100 23000 13425 21478 

Expenditures $22,418 $15,209 $16,761 $19,436 $34,794 $10,597 $16,635 $11,609 $9,099 $8,745 $13,479 $5,587 $15,364 

               

Golf Course 
Revenues $15,988 $33,437 $50,876 $63,756 $68,934 $61,883 $51,301 $56,058 $50,749 $58,366 $34,376 $26,979 $47,725 
Expenditures $31,667 $37,653 $43,486 $35,649 $38,279 $49,110 $57,300 $80,153 $43,513 $41,316 $34,791 $43,762 $44,723 
Rounds of Golf 433 1296 1724 2502 1936 1976 1816 1401 1291 1699 1120 541 1478 
Net -$15,680 -$4,216 $7,390 $28,107 $30,655 $12,773 -$5,999 -$24,100 $7,236 $17,051 -$415 -$16,782 $3,002 
               

Special Events 
Revenues / 
Sponsorships $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,975 $0 $0 $300 $370 $0 $0 $220 

Participation 0 0 0 1600 0 110 0 0 75 766 0 5000 629 
Expenditures $2,013 $110 $110 $285 $0 $1,599 $0 $0 $472 $472 $0 $1,861 $577 
               

TOTAL 
REVENUE $26,606 $55,247 $66,392 $74,664 $98,266 $110,729 $68,555 $91,845 $81,122 $66,707 $45,952 $34,185 $820,269 

TOTAL 
EXPENSES $90,191 $84,792 $91,357 $85,024 $97,723 $99,322 $165,513 $148,556 $82,085 $83,067 $77,577 $78,905 $1,184,112 

TOTAL REVENUE FOR THE YEAR $820,269        

TOTAL EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR $1,184,112         

 
**Expenditures include part-time labor cost, facility operational cost, and full-time labor cost.  Not included in expenditures is loan/bond payments 
and electricity for the areas except for our Golf Course.  All these costs are included in our Golf Course Expenditures. 



 

 
 

1 

 
PLANNING 
July 2023 
Prepared By: Rachael Smith 
Date Prepared:  August 10, 2023 

Planning staff reviewed and signed off on all commercial and residential building and sign permits.   
Staff continues to prepare for upcoming meetings and has overseen contracted projects for the ADA 
Transition Plan, a marketing contract for GWTA and landscaping maintenance for Welcome to 
Goldsboro signs and enhancement areas. Staff continues compliance with the NCGS Legislative 160D 
updates. On-going projects include tree and stump removal, preparation of transportation-related 
documents and preparation of case reports. 

 
2023 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 4 0 1 3 5 11
Subdivison 3 2 1 3 0 0 2

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 3 2 1 2 3 4 1

Special Use 1 3 1 0 2 2 1
Annexation 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Home Occupation 1 0 0 0 0 1 0
Historic District Commission

Commission Review 0 3 2 2 3 3 2
Staff Review 0 0 2 2 1 2 2

UDO Violations
Notice of Violations 4 10 0 0

Violations with Payments 1 0 0 0

Notice of Violations 
(Require Lot Cut) 0 0 0 0 38

Notice of Violations
(Total NOV's Issued) 119 125

Grass Cutting 
Payments to Contractor $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,600 

Unsightly Lot
Payments to Contractor $490.00 $4,600 

Tagged Vehicles 0 1 0 3 4

Illegal Signs Removed
56 102 222 156 333

Bags of Litter Picked Up
128 303 189 271 189

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
 
 
 
2022 
 

 

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Average

Staff Level
Site Plans 0 0 3 4 0 6 2 3 1 5 3 0 27 2
Subdivison 0 0 2 2 0 4 0 1 1 0 1 0 11 1

Planning/City Council
Rezonings 0 2 4 3 5 2 1 3 2 2 3 1 28 2

Special Use 3 1 0 1 2 1 3 3 2 2 3 0 21 2
Annexation - - - - - - - - - - 1 1 2 0

Historic District Commission
Commission Review 1 1 1 0 2 0 3 1 0 1 1 2 13 1

Staff Review 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 0 0 2 0 13 1

Grass Cutting 
# Lots 0 0 0 0 0 85 79 47 64 55 28 4 362 45

Grass Cutting 
Payments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0 $0 $4,565 $2,755 $3,675 $2,924 $1,435 784.00$  $16,138 $2,017

Tagged Vehicles 48 25 18 13 3 7 9 6 15 18 3 12 177 15

Illegal Signs Removed
56 92 102 202 88 127 266 79 96 45 29 36 1218 102

Bags of Litter Picked 
Up 202 165 222 286 198 400 326 422 332 247 114 208 3122 260

Code Enforcement 

Planning Dept.



 

 
  

1 

GOLDSBORO POLICE DEPARTMENT 
July 2023 
Prepared By:  Michael D. West          
Date Prepared:  August 8, 2023  
 
Total Part I Crimes (Homicide, Rape, Robbery, Aggravated Assault, Burglary, Larceny, Motor Vehicle 
Theft, and Arson) for July 2023 was 213, compared to 168 for July 2022. 
 
Property with an estimated value of $500,746 was reported stolen, while property with an estimated 
value of $156,239 was recovered and property damaged was $42,310. 
 
Officers arrested 86 people and issued 267 citations during the month. There were 12 drug-related 
charges.  
 
There was 0 report(s) of assault(s) on officer(s).  

PART I CRIME COMPARISON & TREND 
2023 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  

OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 0 1 2 2 0 0      5  
Rape 0       2  1  2 0 0  0                 5  
Robbery 2 1     4  1 5 4  2      19  
Aggravated Assault 15 17 26 16 20 17 23      134  
Breaking & Entering 22 16  12  18 29  24  30            151  
Larceny 112 88     110    114 160  148  135          867  
Motor Vehicle Theft 10  10 16  12 9  9 23            89  
Arson 0 0 0  0  1  0  0        1  
TOTALS 161 134 170  165  226  202  213         1271  

2022 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total  
OFFENSE 
Homicide 0 1 2 0 0 2 0 0 1  0  0  1 7  
Rape 1 2 1 3 1 1 1 1 2 0 3 3 19  
Robbery 1 2 6 3 5 3 8 2 2 2 5 2 41  
Aggravated Assault     11 12 20 31 27 20 20 19 25 16 13 13 227  
Breaking & Entering 25 19 18 26 19 28 24 16 24 17 10 10 236  
Larceny 92 86     95 118 94 117 106 127 103 162 102 112 1314  
Motor Vehicle Theft 6 6 7 5 15 21 9 7 9 14 15 6 120  
Arson 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2  

TOTALS 136 129 149 187 161 192 168 172 166 211 148 147 1966  

 

 
Revenue collected for July 2023 included:    

 Police Reports   $ 

 
 

  572.00  
 Fingerprints   $      40.00  
 Special Events                                                                                 $ 300.00  
             Total     $   912.00   
        



 

 
 

1 

PUBLIC UTILITIES DEPARTMENT 
July 
Prepared By: Robert Sherman 
Date Prepared: August 11, 2023 
 
Water Treatment Plant 

• The Water Treatment Plant operations are proceeding smoothly. 
o  Currently implementing Capital Projects for the replacements of the ATSs at the WTP and 

at the NRPS. 
o 1 uncertified operator, but the Water Treatment Plant is fully staffed. 

Water Reclamation Facility 
• The Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) operations have been performing well. The average daily flow for June is 7.87-

MGD. The yearly average flow for the WRF is 8.57-MGD. This puts the WRF at 60% capacity. 
o All the city’s 26 pump stations are operating well. No major issues to report. 
o Working on implementation several Capital Improvements projects: Bar screen at New Hope L/S, Generator 

at Westbrook L/S, replacement of the underdrain system for Sand filter #2 and Upgrade of the Public Utilities 
Telemetry System Replace Transfer Switches at the Neuse Rive Pump Station and WTP, Replace Bulk Storage 
Tank at the WRF, Construct Bay 8 enclosure at the Compost Facility and Replace flow meters at the WTP.  

o  5 uncertified operators at the WRF, but the Water Reclamation Facility is fully staffed. 
o Ash St. Lift Station upgrade with MOPCO is in service. River Bend Lift Station construction has started. The 

River Bend lift station will replace Big and Little Cherry lift stations. 
Compost Facility 

• Eight hundred and twenty-two cubic yards of compost and mulch were sold in July 2023. 
• 1 Compost operator with no Class B driver’s license, but the Compost Facility is fully staffed. 

 
Historical data for water and sewer volumes are in million gallons per day (MGD) and are average 
daily flows for each month. 

2023 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 
 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.82 5.80 6.32 5.35 5.58 6.76 6.29      5.99 

Sewer** 7.23 9.94 7.81 9.94 8.64 7.87 9.69      8.77 
Compost 163 358 835 1509 888 866 822      777 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 
2022 
MGD 

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Yearly 
Average 

Water* 5.608 5.487 5.60 5.53 5.91 6.15 6.304 6.330 6.254 5.97 5.80 6.086 5.92 
Sewer** 9.15 9.32 8.63 7.86 7.57 6.56 7.85 7.34 7.05 6.99 6.48 6.67 7.62 
Compost 165 972 663 1,287 995 278 419 204 491 619 830 262 599 

*Water permit- 14.0 MGD; **Wastewater permit- 14.2 MGD 



Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
10.7 17.6 11.3 9.8 19.0 20.0 24.5 16.1
1.6 5.2 3 3.3 4.6 3.7 2.5 3.4
30 22 23 24 31 16 21 23.9
12 12 18 16 24 10 17 15.6
12 3 5 3 2 3 5 4.7
3 5 8 5 4 8 6 5.6

49 61 63 33 44 39 39 46.9
0 0 0 61 91 82 97 47.3
0 15 69 75 276 102 67 86.3

249 207 265 245 279 213 228 240.9
79$       74$       76$       75$       86$       77$       87$       79.1

1.08 0.91 1.10 0.98 1.08 1.03 1.11 1.041
0 38 0 37 71 56 39 34.5
0.9 0.8 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.589

5 4 5 5 4 0 1 3.4

9 8 23 17 32 20 15 17.7
70 65 105 145 113 110 88 99.4
49.7 102 170.8 130.2 190 196.5 229.2 152.6
4.05 2.07 2.16 2.43 0.00 0.40 0.38 1.6
0.00 2.85 0.00 0.00 50.48 7.91 3.68 9.3
1 3 1 7 4 0 3 2.7

9.1 4.7 9.0 14.8 12.9 15.3 37.1 31.0 4.5 5 11.9 6.4 13.5
2.3 1.9 2.2 1.9 3.5 7.1 3.0 4.1 4.1 3.5 4 2.4 3.3
33 37 25 26 19 27 25 24 14 25 26 21 25.2
20 19 20 14 25 17 28 11 12 6 18 6 16.3
2 2 2 1 8 3 2 32 3 5 10 6 6.3
12 27 16 6 12 15 4 8 5 5 8 6 10.3

41 53 42 35 38 48 46 41 29 29 38 34 39.5
32 15 55.5 74.2 92.8 65.6 90.6 53.3 96.8 38.5 0 0 51.2
0 10 39.2 84 195.9 226.7 147.5 165.7 86.8 11 0 0 80.6

295 200 257 212 224 244 227 253 219 232 204 165 227.7
49$       48$       57$       52$       117$     141$     112$     111$     98$       93$       89$       70$       86.4

1.07 0.91 1.11 0.98 1.04 1.09 0.96 1.16 0.97 0.81 0.91 1.05 1.0
20 38 0 0 0 0 0 41 68 87 51 55 30.0
0.6 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.6 0.8 0.6

4 5 4 2 2 5 4 3 2 3 8 5 3.9

0 36 23 16 13 9 17 16 9 15 14 0 14.0
65 51 116 14 56 15 33 57 23 16 16 39 41.8
78.2 156.1 177.2 127.8 166.28 191 133.9 209.2 152.3 138.4 69.2 63.4 138.6
0.14 0.00 3.00 0.00 0.20 0.31 0.13 0.02 0.44 0 0.2 0.2 0.4
0.00 0.40 0.00 0.00 19.28 44.50 9..43 31.60 17.38 20.04 3.08 0.00 12.4
6 2 2 2 3 3 1 7 3 1 4 1 2.9

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Monthly Highlights

Departments AVG

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

D
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
&

 
Co

lle
ct

io
ns

Utility Line Maint (1000-ft)
Lines Camera'd (1000-ft)

Water Repairs
Sewer Repairs

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)

Hydrants Replaced/Fixed
Meter Install/Changed

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Refuse (x1000 tons)

Garage Total Work Orders

Utility Cut Repairs

Solid 
Waste

Recyclables (tons)
Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Cemetery Funerals

St
re

et
 &

 
St

or
m

Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)
Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Storm Pipe Repairs

Pot Hole Repairs
Streets Swept (miles)

2023

Radio, Electrical, Bldg 
ROW Mowing (ac)

City-Owned Lots Mowing (ac)Bl
dg

  &
 

G
ro

un
ds

Total Work Orders
 Total Fuel Cost (x1000)

Solid 
Waste

Refuse (x1000 tons)
Recyclables (tons)

Leaf-n-Limbs (x1000 tons)

Public Works Department
July 2023
Prepared by:  Jamie Stanley
Date Prepared: 11 August 2023

2022

Cemetery Funerals

Utility Cut Repairs
Pot Hole Repairs

Storm Pipe RepairsSt
re

et
 &

 S
to

rm

Streets Swept (miles)
Pipe&Open Ditch Maint(1000-ft)

Ditch mowing (1000-ft)

Garage

Buildings & Grounds: Buildings & Grounds: Pressure washing City Hall buildings and sidewalks, several lighting, electrical and 
pluming issues consumed a majority of Building Maintenance's time.  Grounds added Royal Ave mowing and trimmed the Crepe 
Myrtle and assisted in 2 Center St. Jams.

Distribution & Collections: Call duty responded to 13 after hour calls--total of 23 hours. Completed 118 work orders.

Streets & Stormwater: Repaired 15 Utility cuts totaling 136.9 SY and 88 potholes, 10 trees in roadway, 3 separate concrete 
pours, removed 368 tons of sediment and vegetation from Big Ditch, 386 LF of small ditches cleaned, Swept 229.2 curb miles, Jet 
Rod 3,296 LF storm pipe, cleaned 12 Manholes and 17 Catch Basins.



 

 
 

1 

Travel and Tourism 
July 2023 
Prepared by: Amanda Justice, Candace Clarkson and Amber Herring  
Date Prepared: 8/10/23 
 

● Total hotel revenue generated in June was $2,452,706 which is up 709% YOY. July revenue not yet 

released. 

● Site sessions increased 25% and the average session duration has increased 54% compared to the 

same period last year. The search term “downtown goldsboro nc” moved up 1 spot to rank #1 

● Site Visit with Phenom Sports 

● Hosted Hoteliers meeting on 8/20 to discuss group RFP process. 

● NCAF&E Board Meeting via Zoom Call 

● Attended monthly Freedom Fest Meeting 

● Met with Dustin Pike and Scott Satterfield to discuss office lease. 

● Met with HR Intern to discuss day to day operations of Travel and Tourism 

 

  
             City Occupancy Tax Collections 

 
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June YTD Average 

2022-23 $77,698 $88,942 $92,884 $105,264 $98,050 $90,136 $70,276 $64,615 $81,123 $88,849 $86,324 $100,063 $1,044,224 $87,018 

2021-22 $77, 369 $89,826 $83,501 $62,587 $81,019 $99,449 $62,630 $52,059 $71,272 $83,367 $84,805 $91,505 $939,388 $78,282 

               

               

               
 
 


	Agenda 08-21-23
	ws item b1 - WC Memo
	ws item b2 - WC Exempt Certification 5-3-23
	ws item c - NPO Funding Update List
	ws item - NPO Funding Update List
	Passionate Beginnings Resource Center
	Passionate Beginnings Resource Center 
	Slide Number 2
	Services Offered:
	Slide Number 4
	Breastfeeding Support:Passionate Beginnings Resource Center has provided 10 parents with breastfeeding support within the last year.Assistance Provided For: Latching difficultyBreastfeeding educationPumping schedulesDonor breast milk donation
	Childbirth Education:Passionate Beginnings Resource Center was able to provide childbirth education to 40 families within the last year. Education Included:What to expect during laborHomebirth educationBirth and hormonesInfant feeding
	Doula Support:Passionate Beginnings Resource Center was able to provide 3 parents with doula services within the last year.Services included:Assistance during laborBirth plan creationAdvocacy
	Postpartum Support: Passionate Beginnings Resource Center was able to provide postpartum support to 4 clients within the last year.Services include: Meal preparationLight cleaningSibling careInfant care
	Infant and Family Necessities:Passionate Beginnings Resource Center has provided over 30 families with infant food, toys, breastfeeding supplies, formula, maternity clothes, diapers, pullups, and more!
	Future Projects In Progress: Community Baby ShowerDoula Training
	Slide Number 11


	ws item d - Police Salary Proposal 8.16.23
	Slide Number 1
	VACANCIES
	VACANCIES
	CRIME DATA
	SALARY COMPARISONS
	PROPOSAL A
	PROPOSAL B
	FUNDING
	QUESTIONS

	ws item e - Fire Salary Proposal August 21, 2023
	Slide Number 1
	Personnel 
	Current Staffing
	Current Response Situation
	Ideal Response Situation
	Call Volume
	Importance of Quick Response Times
	Effects of Personnel Shortage
	Hiring Stats for Current Process
	Current Pay Scale in Eastern NC
	Pay Grades�(Current and Proposed)
	Pay Increases
	Proposed Pay Scale�(Certified Firefighters)
	Cost and Funding

	ws item f - Development Services
	Item A - Minutes 8-7-23
	Item B - Taj Polack
	Item C - Overdose Awareness Proclamation 2023
	ws item a - NC Freedom Fest - 2023
	Military & 1st Responders Appreciation Festival
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest
	NC Freedom Fest

	Item D - SU-5-23 PH Agenda Memo FINAL (CONTINUANCE)
	Item E - SU-13-23 PH Agenda Memo FINAL
	Item F - CDBG Rehab Program
	8-21-23 COUNCIL Agenda Item-NEW CDBG Housing Rehabilitation Program Guide and Application
	Felecia Williams, Community Relations & Development Director

	NEW 2023 CDBG Rehab. Program Guidelines - August 2023
	NEW 2023 CDBG Rehab. Program Application - August 2023.docx

	Item G - NCFF Street Close
	Item H - JAG Grant
	Item I - Deed of Easement
	Homewood Suites Dumpster Easement Agenda Memo
	Dumpster Easement Resolution
	Dumpster Easement Aerial Map
	New Easement Survey
	Sheets and Views
	18x24



	Item J - NCDOT Project U-4753
	Item K - Fiscal Policy
	L1 - Fiscal Policy Memo
	L2 - Fiscal Policy RES
	L3 - Fiscal Policy 07-25-23

	Item L - July Monthly Reports
	Monthly Departmental Reports - Cover Page
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report - July 2023
	Community Relations and Development Monthly Report Addendum - July 2023
	ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT - JULY 2023
	Finance 2 - Cash & Investment FY2024-01-Jul
	7-31-23

	Finance 3 - Project Budget to Actual Monthly Report_2023-07 July_1
	Finance 4 - Budget Transfers Summary FY24 2023-01 JUL
	Finance 5 - Donations Quarterly Report FY2023-12-Jun
	Info Tech Monthly Report July 2023
	Inspections - MoRepJuL2023
	Parks &Rec - July Monthly Report 2023 FLB
	Police Monthly Report July 2023
	Public Utilities Department Monthly Report -July 2023
	PW Council Report- 2023 07
	TT July 2023 Directors Report

	ADP9486.tmp
	STIP U-4753 Project Overview
	Slide Number 2
	R-O-W Offer to Purchase Tract A near hotel
	Slide Number 4
	Site Pictures Tract A
	Slide Number 6
	Site Pictures Tract B Greenway Trail R-O-W
	Slide Number 8
	R-O-W Details (B)
	The End




